
WTRY Broadcast Schedule Regular Meetings, Wednesday, 6:00 p.m. and 11:00 p.m. Study Meetings, Wednesday, 3:00 p.m. 

 PLANNING COMMISSION 
 MEETING AGENDA 

REGULAR MEETING 
 
 

John J. Tagle, Chair, Donald Edmunds, Vice Chair 
Michael W. Hutson, Edward Kempen, Tom Krent, Philip Sanzica 

Gordon Schepke, Robert Schultz and Thomas Strat 
   
February 12, 2013 7:00 P.M. Council Chambers 
   

 
1. ROLL CALL 
 
2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES – January 22, 2013 Special/Study Meeting 
 
4. PUBLIC COMMENTS – For Items Not on the Current Agenda 
 

POSTPONED ITEM 
 
5. CONDITIONAL REZONING APPLICATION (File Number CR 008) – Proposed Tim Horton’s Café, 

Northwest Corner Square Lake and Dequindre, Section 1, From NN (Neighborhood Node “N”) to CB 
(Community Business) District 

 
SPECIAL USE REQUEST AND PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW 

 
6. PUBLIC HEARING – SPECIAL USE AND PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number SU 400) 

– Proposed Starbucks/Qdoba Oakland Mall Outlot, Northwest Corner of John R and 14 Mile, Section 
35, Currently Zoned GB (General Business) District 

 
PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW 

 
7. PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number SP 979) – Proposed Galleria of Troy, North side of 

Big Beaver between Wilshire and I-75, Section 21, Currently Zoned BB (Big Beaver) District 
 

REZONING REQUEST 
 
8. PUBLIC HEARING – CITY INITIATED REZONING APPLICATION (File Number Z 742) – Proposed 

1071 Villa Park (part of Parcel Identification No. 88-20-02-301-010), East Side of Rochester Road, 
South of South Boulevard, Section 2, From R-1D (One Family Residential) District to RT (One Family 
Attached Residential) District 

 
ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT 

 
9. ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (File Number ZOTA 245) – Sober Living Facility 
 
 
 
 
 
 

500 W. Big Beaver 
Troy, MI  48084 
(248) 524-3364 
www.troymi.gov 

planning@troymi.gov 



TROY CITY PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA February 12, 2013 
 
 

WTRY Broadcast Schedule Regular Meetings, Wednesday, 6:00 p.m. and 11: 00 p.m.Study Meetings, Wednesday, 3:00 p.m. 
 

2 

OTHER BUSINESS 
 
10. PUBLIC COMMENTS – For Items on Current Agenda 
 
11. PLANNING COMMISSION COMMENTS 
 
 
ADJOURN 
 
 
 
NOTICE: People with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this meeting should contact the City Clerk by e-mail at 

clerk@troymi.gov or by calling (248) 524-3317 at least two working days in advance of the meeting.  An attempt will be made to make 
reasonable accommodations. 

mailto:clerk@ci.troy.mi.us�


PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING – DRAFT JANUARY 22, 2013 
  
 
 

1 
 

Chair Tagle called the Special/Study meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission to order 
at 7:00 p.m. on January 22, 2013 in the Council Board Room of the Troy City Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: 
Donald Edmunds 
Michael W. Hutson 
Philip Sanzica 
Gordon Schepke 
Robert Schultz 
John J. Tagle 
 
Absent: 
Edward Kempen 
Tom Krent 
Thomas Strat 
 
Also Present: 
R. Brent Savidant, Planning Director 
Susan Lancaster, Assistant City Attorney 
Ben Carlisle, Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Resolution # PC-2013-01-007 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Sanzica 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the agenda as printed. 
 
Yes: All present (6) 
Absent: Kempen, Krent, Strat 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 
3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 
Resolution # PC-2013-01-008 
Moved by: Edmunds 
Seconded by: Schepke 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the minutes of the January 8, 2013 Regular meeting as 
printed. 
 
Yes: All present (6) 
Absent: Kempen, Krent, Strat 
 
MOTION CARRIED 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING – DRAFT JANUARY 22, 2013 
  
 
 

2 
 

4. PUBLIC COMMENT – Items not on the Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 

 
 
5. ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS (ZBA) REPORT 

 
There was no report as the ZBA representative was absent. 

 
 
6. DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY (DDA) REPORT 

 
There was no January DDA meeting. 

 
 
7. PLANNING AND ZONING REPORT 

 
Mr. Savidant presented the 2012 Planning Commission Report. 

 
STUDY ITEMS 

 
8. INTERPRETATION OF ZONING ORDINANCE – Residential Treatment and Recovery 

Facility 
 
The Planning Commission discussed the tour of the Shelby Township sober living facility 
that was conducted on January 17, 2012. 
 
There was discussion on this item. 
 
Paul Smith and David Lord, representing a possible sober living facility in Troy, were 
present and participated in the discussion.  The potential location for this facility is 2447, 
2461 and 2501 Rochester Court. 
 
The Planning Commission reached consensus on their support of sober living facilities 
and the need for developing appropriate language in the Zoning Ordinance to permit 
and regulate these facilities in Troy. 
 
It was determined that the Planning Department will begin working on draft language 
regulating sober living facilities.  The Planning Commission agreed that conceptually, 
they should be regulated similar to adult foster care facilities.  That is, smaller facilities 
should be permitted by right in single family neighborhoods but larger facilities, more 
commercial in nature, should be permitted by special use in more intense districts such 
as multiple family districts. 
 
Some members of the Planning Commission mentioned the importance of informing the 
neighbors of potential facilities in the area.  



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING – DRAFT JANUARY 22, 2013 
  
 
 

3 
 

9. PLANNING COMMISSION CODE OF ETHICS 
 
The Planning Commission discussed the Boards and Committees Code of Ethics 
recently adopted by Troy City Council.  This document will be provided to Planning 
Commission members in the future by the Clerk’s Office. 
 
 

OTHER BUSINESS 
 
10. PUBLIC COMMENT – Items on Current Agenda 
 

There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
 
11. PLANNING COMMISSION COMMENT 

 
There was general discussion. 
 

 
 
The Special/Study meeting of the Planning Commission adjourned at 8:45 p.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
       
John Tagle, Chair 
 
 
 
 
       
R. Brent Savidant, Planning Director 
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2013 PC Minutes\Draft\2013 01 22 Special Study Meeting_Draft.doc 
 
 



PC 2013.02.12 
  Agenda Item # 5 
 

 
 
DATE: February 7, 2013 
 
TO: Planning Commission 
 
FROM: R. Brent Savidant, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: PUBLIC HEARING – CONDITIONAL REZONING APPLICATION (File 

 Number CR 008) – Proposed Tim Horton’s Café, Northwest Corner 
 Square Lake and Dequindre, Section 1, From NN (Neighborhood Node “
 N”) to CB (Community Business) District 

 
The applicant, Troy-Dequindre Properties, LLC, seeks a conditional rezoning of the 
subject parcel from NN (Neighborhood Node) to CB (Community Business) District.  
The parcel is approximately 0.68 acres in area.  The applicant proposes a Tim Horton’s 
Restaurant and Café (with drive-through) on the site.   
 
The Planning Commission discussed this item informally at the May 22, 2012 
Special/Study meeting.  A Planning Commission public hearing was held on January 8, 
2013. 
 
At the January 8, 2013 meeting, the Planning Commission postponed the item for 30 
days to provide the applicant an opportunity to submit a traffic study, as offered by the 
applicant.  The applicant has not provided a traffic study. 
 
The Planning Department recommends postponement of this item, the until such time 
that the applicant provides a traffic study and City staff has opportunity to review the 
traffic study. 
 
Attachments: 

1. Maps 
2. Report from CWA 
3. Minutes from 01 08 2013 Planning Commission Regular meeting (excerpt) 

 
 
G:\Conditional Rezoning\CR-008  Tim Hortons Cafe  Sec 02\PC Memo 02 12 2013.doc 



PROPOSED RESOLUTION 
 
 
PUBLIC HEARING – CONDITIONAL REZONING APPLICATION (File Number CR 008) 
– Proposed Tim Horton’s Café, Northwest Corner Square Lake and Dequindre, Section 
1, From NN (Neighborhood Node “N”) to CB (Community Business) District 
 
Proposed Resolution # PC-2013-02- 
Moved by: 
Seconded by: 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City Council 
that the NN to CB conditional rezoning request, as per Section 16.04 of the City of 
Troy Zoning Ordinance, located on the northwest corner of Square Lake and 
Dequindre, within Section 1, being approximately 0.68 acres in size, be granted, for 
the following reasons:  
 ) or 
 
(denied, for the following reasons:  ) or 
 

1. The proposed rezoning is inconsistent with the City of Troy Master Plan. 
2. The proposed use does not meet the Special Use standards of Section 9.03 of 

the Zoning Ordinance. 
3. The proposed use does not meet the Drive-Through use standards of Section 

6.10 of the Zoning Ordinance. 
4. The small property area, coupled with the proposed drive-through use and 

corner lot location, creates a number of site design issues. 
5. The site does not meet minimum parking requirements, and the applicant has 

not provided sufficient reasons for granting a parking space reduction.  
 
(postponed, for the following reasons:  ) 
 

 
Yes: 
No: 
 
MOTION PASSED / FAILED 
 

 
 
G:\Conditional Rezoning\CR-008  Tim Hortons Cafe  Sec 02\Proposed PC Resolution 2013 02 12.doc 



CONDITIONAL REZONING, TIM HORTON'S

11/16/2012

Legend

1: 749

City of Troy Planning Department

Printed:

620125 125Feet

Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded deeds, plats, tax maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It 
is not a legally recorded map survey. Users of this data are hereby notified that the source information represented should be consulted for verification.

Scale

Road Centerline
Major Road
Industrial Road
Local Road

Ponds and Basins
Streams and Creeks
Parcels
Aerial Photos - 2010

Red:    Band_1
Green: Band_2
Blue:   Band_3



CONDITIONAL REZONING, TIM HORTON'S

11/16/2012

Legend

1: 749

City of Troy Planning Department

Printed:

620125 125Feet

Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded deeds, plats, tax maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It 
is not a legally recorded map survey. Users of this data are hereby notified that the source information represented should be consulted for verification.

Scale

Road Centerline
Major Road
Industrial Road
Local Road

Current Zoning Ordinance
(PUD) Planned Unit Development
(CF) Community Facilities District
(EP) Environmental Protection District
(BB) Big Beaver Road (Form Based)
(MRF) Maple Road (Form Based)
(NN) Neighborhood Nodes (A-U)
(CB) Community Business
(GB) General Business
(IB) Integrated Industrial Business District
(O) Office Building District
(OM) Office Mixed Use
(P) Vehicular Parking District
(R-1A) One Family Residential District
(R-1B) One Family Residential District
(R-1C) One Family Residential District
(R-1D) One Family Residential District
(R-1E) One Family Residential District
(RT) One Family Attached Residential District
(MR) Multi-Family Residential
(MHP) Manufactured Housing
(UR) Urban Residential
(RC) Research Center District
(PV) Planned Vehicle Sales

Ponds and Basins
Streams and Creeks
Parcels
Aerial Photos - 2010

Red:    Band_1
Green: Band_2
Blue:   Band_3



 
 
  

 Date: January 2, 2013 
 

Conditional Rezoning, Special Use Permit and 
Preliminary Site Plan Review 

For 
City of Troy, Michigan 

 
GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
Applicant Burt Kassab 
 
Project Name: Dequindre- Tim Hortons Cafe  
 
Plan Date: November 14, 2012 
 
Location: Northwest corner of Square Lake and Dequindre 
 
Zoning: Neighborhood Node N  
 
Action Requested: Planning Commission review and recommendation to the City Council 

for Conditional Rezoning, Special Use Permit, and Preliminary Site Plan.   
 
Required Information:          Deficiencies noted. 
 
 

SUMMARY OF DEVELOPMENT AND PROCEDURE 
 
The 0.68 acre parcel is located in form-based district Neighborhood Node N and regulated as a Site Type 
B.  The proposed restaurant/café is permitted in Site Type B; however a drive-through use is not 
permitted.  In early April, Mr. Kassab requested a site reclassification to Site Type A, which does allow a 
drive-through in a neighborhood node through a Special Use.  The reclassification of Site Types can be 
considered by the Zoning Administrator as outlined in Section 5.02.G.  In considering the requested 
reclassification, the Zoning Administrator found that the application did not meet the reclassification 
standards outlined in Section 5.02.G.1-5.  It appears that the only limitation to the applicant of the 
Neighborhood Node zoning is the prohibition of the drive-through.   
 
Subsequent to the reclassification denial, the applicant has requested to conditionally rezone the 
property to CB, Community Business in order to construct a Tim Hortons Café and Bake Shop with a 
drive-through.   Drive-through uses are permitted by Special Use in the CB District.   The requested 



Dequindre Tim Hortons - Conditional Rezoning, Special Use, and Site Plan Review.   

2 

conditional rezoning was informally and conceptually considered by the Planning Commission on May 
22, 2012.  Please see the attached minutes for more details.  
 
While we support the development of the site as a commercial use, find that a drive-thru use 
predicated on a conditional rezoning would not advance the Master Plan intent of Neighborhood Node 
N at this location.  Most importantly, there are numerous site planning issues created by the limited size 
of the property.    
 
There is an appropriate relationship between the safety and impact of drive-throughs and the size and 
configuration of a site.  A minimum lot size is necessary to ensure safe ingress/egress, sufficient space 
for on-site for circulation, reduction of conflict between vehicular and pedestrians, and provision of 
buffering to reduce potential impact upon adjacent properties.   Current ordinance standards require 
each site must be considered on a site- by-site basis when a drive-through is proposed.  
 
The subject parcel is approximately 0.678 acres in area and a relatively small site for a drive-through 
restaurant.  As a comparison, the existing Tim Horton’s (with drive-through) on Rochester Road is 
approximately 0.961 acres, and has only one curb cut. The Tim Horton’s (with drive-through) recently 
approved on Maple Road is approximately 0.746 acres, and has only one curb cut.  These parcels are 
both larger than the subject parcel and have only one point of ingress/egress, and therefore fewer 
potential traffic conflicts.  The small size results in a number of potential turning conflicts between 
stacking cars, cars entering or leaving parking spaces, and cars entering or leaving the site. These 
potential turning conflicts, in addition to increasing potential vehicular and pedestrian conflicts, could 
negatively impact maneuverability and safety both on the site and in the immediate area.  In addition to 
the relatively small size of this site, a proposed restaurant use in combination with the corner location 
also present hindrances for a drive-through.  Quick serve restaurants and cafes are the largest parking 
generator on a square foot basis.   Thus even a small restaurant requires a significant amount of 
parking.  Secondly, a corner lot location allows for two points of ingress/egress, which adds additional 
access and circulation conflict points.   
 
The small property square footage, coupled with the proposed restaurant use and corner lot location 
creates the following specific site planning issues: 

• Deficiency of eight (8) required parking spaces; 
• At least one (1) drive-through stacking space protrudes into the drive-aisle;  
• Disjointed parking area;  
• Potential deficiency in overall landscaped area;  
• Impact on the residential property to the west;  
• Access and internal traffic circulation at peak period times;   
• Internal pedestrian circulation from the parking lot located behind the drive-through to the 

building;  
• Internal pedestrian circulation due to location of the preview menu and menu and speaker;  
• Lack of a snow storage location;  
• High visibility on Square Lake Road of the proposed dumpster enclosure;  
• Significant traffic movements and conflict points on a small site; and 
• Unknown findings of a future traffic study. 

 
See the site plan review section for more detail.  The applicant is seeking a conditional rezoning with a 
condition being the submitted site plan. Because of the site planning issues we encourage the applicant 
to either:  



Dequindre Tim Hortons - Conditional Rezoning, Special Use, and Site Plan Review.   

3 

Neighborhood Node “N” Zoning Map  

1. Add the entire parcel or portions of the parcel to the north.  By adding additional area to the 
site, a drive-thru use might be feasible because issues of pedestrian and automobile conflict, 
tight circulation, and encroachment and impact upon adjacent properties can be mitigated.   
Adding the parcel to the north would allow the zoning administrator to potentially reclassify the 
site to Site Type A which permits drive-through as a special use.   

2. Maintain the retail use but eliminate the drive-through.  By eliminating the drive-through the 
proposed use is by-right within the underlying NN district, and the applicant would be only 
required to go through a site plan review.  This could be approved by the Planning Commission 
at one meeting.  

3. Consider an alternative use of the site.  
 

 
The proposed development requires the following:  
 
1. Conditional rezoning from Neighborhood Node N to CB.  Conditions of approval include the 

submitted site plan including:  
o The site will be used a restaurant/coffee shop; 
o The configuration of the drive thru lane will be as shown on the Site Plan; 
o The location of the building will be the front corner of the site, as shown on the Site Plan; 
o The patio area layout will be as shown on the attached Site Plan (i.e. continuously 

connected with and accessible from the sidewalks/plaza like area in the front corner of the 
site); 

o The type/location of the bicycle rack will be as shown on the Site Plan; and 
o The façade of the building will be as shown on the enclosed elevations.   

2. Preliminary Site Plan approval.  



Dequindre Tim Hortons - Conditional Rezoning, Special Use, and Site Plan Review.   

4 

3. Special Use for drive-thru. 

PART 1: CONDITIONAL REZONING 
 
Master Plan 
 
Neighborhood nodes are the concentrated, commercial and mixed-use centers situated at major 
intersections.  The Master Plan for this node calls for:  
 

Neighborhood Node N: Low-intensity commercial uses should remain, but redevelopment should 
include an integrated compact residential component, live/work units, or small office.  Service-
oriented development in combination with new residential development would provide a unique 
setting here.   

 
The proposed use as commercial (without a drive-through) is appropriate and encouraged. A 
commercial use, built to the form-based district design standards outlined in the Zoning Ordinance, fits 
the intent of this node and would greatly enhance and serve the adjacent neighborhood well.  However, 
due to site planning issues (most specifically the small size of the parcel), the intent to develop more 
urban form buildings and pedestrian-oriented areas, and the character of the surrounding 
neighborhood (see Neighborhood Node N section below), a drive-through use on this parcel was not 
considered or intended in the Master Plan. 
 
Zoning Background 
 
Site Type B in neighborhood nodes permits a number of uses including attached and multiple family 
residential, office/institution, service, and retail uses such as a Tim Hortons.  However, a drive-thru 
within Site Type B in any neighborhood node is not permitted.   In early April, Mr. Kassab requested a 
site reclassification to Site Type A, which does allow a drive-thru in a neighborhood node through a 
Special Use.  In considering the requested reclassification, the Zoning Administrator applies the 
standards outlined in Section 5.02.G.1-5.  It was the Zoning Administrator’s finding and our concurrence 
that the application did not meet the standards for reclassification, and thus the reclassification was 
denied.   Please see attached letter from the Zoning Administrator for more details.   
 
Considerations for Rezoning from Neighborhood Node N to CB, Community Business 
 
Neighborhood nodes are located at major intersections adjacent to residential neighborhoods.  These 
nodes are intended to serve as commercial and mixed use centers serving as places to meet the basic 
needs of the neighborhoods, as well as the community as a whole.  The key parcels within the 
neighborhood nodes are the corner parcels at these major intersections.  Because the parcel in question 
is a corner parcel, its importance to develop under the regulations of Site Type B and the design 
standards outlined in the Neighborhood Node is a key to the future development and the 
implementation of Neighborhood Node N.  A potential rezoning of this parcel to CB, especially in 
consideration of a drive-through, could limit the remaining parcels in the node to develop under the 
Neighborhood Node N - Site Type B regulations.   This is especially true for the parcel to the north, 
which would be an isolated Neighborhood Node N parcel surrounded by differentiating zoning districts.   
 
The applicant has done a nice job of attempting to adhere to the building placement requirements of 
the Neighborhood Node.  However, due to site planning restrictions, a rezoning of this parcel with a 



Dequindre Tim Hortons - Conditional Rezoning, Special Use, and Site Plan Review.   

5 

drive-through use would greatly limit the implementation of the Neighborhood Node N as envisioned in 
the Master Plan.    
 
SECTION 16.04.C.3 
 
The Zoning Ordinance identifies five (5) findings that the Plan Commission should evaluate when 
considering a Conditional Rezoning petition (Section 16.04.C).  A Conditional Rezoning may only be 
approved upon a finding and determination that all of the following are satisfied: 
 

a) The conditions, proposed development, and/or proposed use of the land are designed or 
proposed for public health, safety, and welfare purposes. 
 
The site is only 0.68 acres in area.  The site appears too tight for adequate circulation for a 
drive-through use and creates the potential for both automobile and pedestrian conflicts.   
Furthermore, the size limitation of the site does not allow for adequate buffering from 
adjacent residential uses.   

 
b) The conditions, proposed development and/or proposed use are not in material conflict with 

the Master Plan, or, if there is material conflict with the Master Plan, such conflict is due to one 
of the following: 

I. A change in City policy since the Master Plan was adopted. 
II. A change in conditions since the Master Plan was adopted. 

III. An error in the Master Plan. 
 

The form-based district permits a wide range of uses with site type B.  Use groups 2 
(residential/lodging), 3 (office/institution) and 5 (retail/entertainment/service) are all 
permitted by right within site type B (see Table 5.06.C-1).  There do not appear to be any 
reasons that would preclude the site being used for any of these purposes, nor does your 
application mention any.   
 
A drive-through use on this site would be a significant deviation from the Master Plan, which 
calls for the following in Node N: “Low-intensity commercial uses should remain, but 
redevelopment should include an integrated compact residential component, live/work units, 
or small office. 
 
Service-oriented use development in combination with new residential development would 
provide a unique setting here”. The drive-through component is more intense and less 
compact than what is planned for this particular node. 

 
The proposed use as commercial (without a drive-through) is appropriate and encouraged. A 
commercial use, built to the form-based district design standards outlined in the Zoning 
Ordinance, fits the intent of this node and would greatly enhance and serve the adjacent 
neighborhood well.  However, due to site planning issues (most specifically the small size of 
the parcel), the intent to develop more urban form buildings and pedestrian-oriented areas, 
and the character of the surrounding neighborhood (see Neighborhood Node N section 
below), a drive-through use on this parcel was not considered or intended in the Master Plan. 

 



Dequindre Tim Hortons - Conditional Rezoning, Special Use, and Site Plan Review.   

6 

c) The conditions, proposed development and/or proposed use are in accordance with all terms 
and provisions of the zoning district to which the land is to be rezoned, except as otherwise 
allowed in the Conditional Rezoning Agreement. 

 
If the applicant were able to address the identified site planning issues, the proposed 
conditions are in accordance with all terms of the CB zoning districts.   
 

d) Public services and facilities affected by a proposed development will be capable of 
accommodating service and facility loads caused by use of the development.  
 
In regards to utilities, the site is adequately served.  However, the Engineering Department 
has asked for a traffic study to determine any necessary on-site and/or public road 
improvements.  The applicant has requested that a traffic study be provided at a later date 
(see Traffic section, below) 

 
e) The conditions, proposed development and/or proposed use shall insure compatibility with 

adjacent uses of land. 
 

While a restaurant/café use would serve the adjacent neighborhood, the size limitation of the 
site does not allow for adequate buffering of the drive-through from adjacent residential 
uses.   

 

PART 2: SITE PLAN 
 
Traffic, Access, and Circulation 
 
Traffic 
 
Parking, traffic, and circulation for this site must be carefully examined.  The Engineering Department 
has requested a traffic study to review the need for a deceleration lane on Square Lake, internal 
circulation, and potential for restricting left turns in and out of the site.  The other Tim Horton locations 
that have been built in Troy have been on higher volume roads including Big Beaver and Rochester 
(both 6-lane boulevards) and Maple (5-lane road which required that they provide a right turn lane or at 
least infill the one that stopped short of the existing site).  In addition, Dequindre is a County border 
road, so any work in the Dequindre ROW or impact from the development on Dequindre may need 
input/permits from Sterling Heights/Macomb County/Oakland County. 
 
The applicant has noted that they do not want to incur the expense of conducting a traffic study 
without some assurance from the City that the project will be approved.  However, because this is a 
Conditional Rezoning where a condition is the submitted site plan, findings of the traffic study may 
affect site layout.    If the Planning Commission is inclined to approve the project we recommend that 
applicant provide a traffic study prior to a recommendation of the conditional rezoning and preliminary 
site plan approval.   If the Planning Commission was to recommend approval and the traffic study 
requires site plan changes, the applicant would be required to revise the conditional rezoning request.   
 
 
 
 



Dequindre Tim Hortons - Conditional Rezoning, Special Use, and Site Plan Review.   

7 

Access: 
 
Access to the site will be via a curb cut off Square Lake and a curb cut off Dequindre.  The Engineering 
Department notes that both approaches are irregularly shaped.  The applicant should try to reconfigure 
the approaches so that they enter the property perpendicular to the property line and then provide the 
necessary radii to match up to the parking lot.  This would result in a more typical parking lot layout. 
  
Circulation: 
 
The proposed building would be located at the corner of the site, with all parking spaces located to the 
side and rear.  A proposed drive-through lane is located within the parking lot to the rear of the 
building.  The small size of the lot does not allow for an escape lane.  The width of the stacking lane is 13 
feet; however the width may be reduced to 10 feet.   As noted, the tenth car stacking space protrudes 
into the drive-aisle creating a circulation issue.    
 
While the site will be provided with sidewalks along Square Lake and Dequindre, internal pedestrian 
circulation is difficult.  Access to the building from the parking lot behind the drive-through will require 
pedestrians to cross the drive-through lane.  In addition, the applicant will need to move the location of 
the preview menu and menu board and speakers as they are located in the middle of the pedestrian 
sidewalk.   There must be at least a clear 5-foot wide walkway.  The applicant should address pedestrian 
conflict issues.   
 
There is a significant amount of traffic movements and conflict points.  
 
Items to be Addressed: 1).  Provide traffic study prior to Planning Commission recommendation of 
Conditional Rezoning and Preliminary Site Plan approval; 2). Reconfigure the approaches so that they 
enter the property perpendicular to the property line; 3). Reduce drive-through width to 10 feet;  and 4). 
Reconfigure layout so that the tenth required stacking space does not protrude into drive-aisle.  
 
Parking 
 
Section 13.06 provides the following parking requirements:  
 
 Required Provided Compliance 
Tim Hortons: 
1 space per 70 net sq/ft 

28 spaces 20 spaces Non-Compliant 

Stacking Spaces 10  9 Non-Compliant 

    
Barrier Free 1 2 Compliant 
Bicycle Parking 2 2 Complaint 
Loading 0 0 Compliant 
 
The applicant is deficient by eight (8) parking spaces.  The Planning Commission may reduce the 
required parking provided that the applicant provide evidence that such parking is not necessary.   The 
approved Maple Road Tim Hortons was exactly the same square footage and provided 22 spaces.   
 



Dequindre Tim Hortons - Conditional Rezoning, Special Use, and Site Plan Review.   

8 

Items to be Addressed: Provide 8 additional spaces, or provide evidence that providing only 18 
spaces is sufficient to address site parking needs.  
 
Area, Width, Height, and Setbacks 
 
Section 4.13 establishes the dimensional requirements for the CB District.  Though rezoned to CB to 
allow for the drive-through, the applicant has attempted to construct the site plan in accordance to site 
orientation requirements of the Neighborhood Node Form-Based District.  We have included 
Neighborhood Node Form Based Requirements for information only.  The requirements and the 
proposed dimensions are as follows: 
 

 
Applicant shall confirm that they have provided the necessary landscaped area.  
 
Items to be Addressed: Provide landscape area information. 
 
Photometric Plan 
 
The applicant did not provide a Photometric Plan, as required.  
  
Items to be Addressed: Provide a Photometric Plan in compliance with Article 13. 
 
 
 
 

 CB Required: 
Neighborhood Node 

Required:  
Provided: 

Compliance to 
CB 

Front (Square Lake) 10’ minimum 
setback 

0’ build-to-line 10 feet Complies 

Front (Dequindre) 10’ minimum 
setback 

0’ build-to-line (may be 
increased by the 

Planning Commission to 
30 foot with inclusion of 

plaza) 

23.6 feet Complies 

Side (West) 20’  minimum 
setback 

0’ 160 feet Complies 

Side (North) 20’ minimum 
setback 

0’ 35.5 feet Complies 

Building Height Maximum 2 stories, 
30’ 

Maximum 3 stores, 45 
feet. 

20 feet Complies 

Minimum Distance 
from a residential 

building 

75’ Not Applicable Over 160’ Complies 

Lot Coverage Not Applicable 30 percent 21.1% Not applicable 
for CB district 

Landscape Open 
Space 

20 percent 20 percent Information 
Not Provided 

Information 
Not Provided 



Dequindre Tim Hortons - Conditional Rezoning, Special Use, and Site Plan Review.   

9 

Landscaping Plan 
 
The application includes a landscape plan.   
 

 Required: Provided: Compliance: 

Greenbelt: 10 feet in width along Square 
Lake Road and Dequindre Road  
 
 

10 feet 10 feet Compliant  

Street Trees: The Ordinance requires that 
the greenbelt shall be landscaped with a 
minimum of one (1) deciduous tree for 
every thirty (30) lineal feet, or fraction 
thereof, of frontage abutting a public road 
right-of-way.   

Square Lake: 8 
deciduous 
 
 
Dequindre: 5 
deciduous  

Square Lake: 5 
deciduous and 3 
ornamental  
 
Dequindre: 5  
street trees 

Replace 
ornamental trees 
with deciduous  

Site landscaping: A minimum of twenty 
percent (20%) of the site area shall be 
comprised of landscape material. 

20% Information not 
provided 

Provide required 
information    

Parking Lot Landscaping:  1 tree for every 
8 parking spaces.  Trees may be located 
adjacent to parking lot with planning 
commission approval.   

4 trees  3 trees Provide one 
additional tree 

Screening Between Land Uses: 80% 
opacity 
 

80% opacity 
with one of 
three options 

Alternative 3: mix 
of large and 
narrow evergreen 
trees 

Compliant 

 
Based on a 0.68 acre site, the applicant is required to provide 592 sq/ft of landscaped area.  The 
applicant should confirm if they are have met this requirement.  The applicant should indicate on site 
plan where snow storage is proposed.  Lastly, the applicant should provide trash enclosure details; the 
applicant is encouraged to match the enclosure materials with the masonry of the building.   
 
Items to be Addressed: 1.) Provide overall landscaping calculation; 2.) Replace ornamental trees with 
deciduous ones along Square Lake; and 3). Provide one (1) additional parking lot tree; 4). Indicate on-site 
snow storage; and 5).  Provide trash enclosure detail.   
 
DESIGN STANDARDS 
 
A condition of the Conditional Rezoning is the compliance of the facades to the Neighborhood Nodes 
Form Based design standards. 
 
Building Orientation and Entrance 
 

a. Primary Entrance:  The primary building entrance shall be clearly identifiable and useable and 
located in the front façade parallel to the street.  Complies 
 



Dequindre Tim Hortons - Conditional Rezoning, Special Use, and Site Plan Review.   

10 

b. Recessed Doorways.  Where the building entrance is located on or within five (5) feet of a lot 
line, doorways shall be recessed into the face of the building.  Not applicable  
 

c. Residential Dwellings.  Entrances for all residential dwellings shall be clearly defined by at least 
one (1) of the following: 

I. Projecting or recessed entrance.  A recessed entrance is required if the building entrance 
is located on or within five (5) feet of the lot line. 

II. Stoop or enclosed or covered porch. 
III. Transom and/or side light window panels framing the door opening. 
IV. Architectural trim or unique color treatments framing the door opening 

 
 Not Applicable  
 
Ground Story Activation 
 

a. The first floor of any front façade facing a right-of-way shall be no less than fifty (50) percent 
windows and doors, and the minimum transparency for facades facing a side street, side yard, or 
parking area shall be no less than 30 percent of the façade.  Transparency alternatives are 
permitted up to 80% of the 50% total along the front of buildings, and up to 100% of the sides of 
buildings.  The minimum transparency requirement shall apply to all sides of a building that abut 
an open space, including a side yard, or public right-of-way.  Transparency requirements shall 
not apply to sides which abut an alley. 

 
It appears that the applicant is deficient in meeting the fifty (50) percent transparency 
requirements along Square Lake and Dequindre and the 30% facing the parking area.    
 

Transitional Features 
 

a. Transitional features are architectural elements, site features, or alterations to building massing 
that are used to provide a transition between higher intensity uses and low- or moderate-density 
residential areas.  These features assist in mitigating potential conflicts between those uses.  
Transitional features are intended to be used in combination with landscape buffers or large 
setbacks. 

 
Through the use of setbacks, and landscaping, the applicant has met this requirement.  

 
Site Access and Parking 
 

a. Required Parking.  Off-street parking shall be provided in accordance with the standards set 
forth in Article 13, Site Design Standards.    
 
The applicant has not provided the necessary parking.   See parking section.    
  

b. Location. 
I. When parking is located in a side yard (behind the front building line) but  fronts on the 

required building line, no more than fifty (50) percent of the  total site’s linear feet along 
the required building line or one hundred (100) feet, whichever is less, shall be occupied 
by parking.    



Dequindre Tim Hortons - Conditional Rezoning, Special Use, and Site Plan Review.   

11 

 
Not Applicable  
 

II. For a corner lot, shall be no more than fifty (50) percent of the site’s cumulative linear 
feet along the required building lines or one hundred (100) feet, whichever is less, shall 
be occupied by parking.  The building shall be located in the corner of the lot adjacent to 
the intersection.  
 
Complies 

 
III. For a double frontage lot or a lot that has frontage on three (3) streets, the  cumulative 

total of all frontages occupied by parking shall be no more  than sixty-five (65) percent of 
the total site’s linear feet along a required  building line or one hundred and twenty-five 
(125) feet, whichever is less.  
 
Not Applicable  

 
IV. Where off-street parking is visible from a street, it should be screened in accordance 

with the standards set forth in Section 13.02.C.   
 
The applicant has screened their parking lot in compliance with section 13.0.2.C. 

  
Items to be Addressed:  None   
 

STANDARDS 
 
 
Special Use Standards of Approval 
 
In the OM District, restaurants with drive-through service are permitted as a special use. For any special 
use, according to Section 9.02.D, the Planning Commission shall “…review the request, supplementary 
materials either in support or opposition thereto, as well as the Planning Department’s report, at a 
Public Hearing established for that purpose, and shall either grant or deny the request, table action on 
the request, or grant the request subject to specific conditions.”  Section 9.03 states that before 
approving any requests for Special Use Approval, the Planning Commission shall consider: 
 
1. Compatibility with Adjacent Uses. The Special Use shall be designed and constructed in a manner 

harmonious with the character of adjacent property and the surrounding area. In determining 
whether a Special Use will be harmonious and not create a significant detrimental impact, as 
compared to the impacts of permitted uses.   

 
The site is only 0.68 acres in area.  The site appears too tight for adequate circulation for a 
drive-through use and creates the potential for both automobile and pedestrian conflicts.   
Furthermore, the size limitation of the site does not allow for adequate buffering from 
adjacent residential uses.  The special use as designed and constructed is not harmonious 
with the character of adjacent property and the surrounding area.   
 



Dequindre Tim Hortons - Conditional Rezoning, Special Use, and Site Plan Review.   

12 

 
2. Compatibility with the Master Plan. The proposed Special Use shall be compatible and in accordance 

with the goals and objectives of the City of Troy Master Plan and any associated sub-area and 
corridor plans.  

 
The proposed use as commercial (without a drive-through) is appropriate and encouraged. A 
commercial use, built to the form-based district design standards outlined in the Zoning 
Ordinance, fits the intent of this node and would greatly enhance and serve the adjacent 
neighborhood well.  However, due to site planning issues (most specifically the small size of 
the parcel), the intent to develop more urban form buildings and pedestrian-oriented areas, 
and the character of the surrounding neighborhood (see Neighborhood Node N section 
below), a drive-through use on this parcel was not considered or intended in the Master Plan. 

 
 
3. Traffic Impact. The proposed Special Use shall be located and designed in a manner which will 

minimize the impact of traffic, taking into consideration: pedestrian access and safety; vehicle trip 
generation (i.e. volumes); types of traffic, access location, and design, circulation and parking design; 
street and bridge capacity and, traffic operations at nearby intersections and access points. Efforts 
shall be made to ensure that multiple transportation modes are safely and effectively accommodated 
in an effort to provide alternate modes of access and alleviate vehicular traffic congestion.  

 
The subject parcel is a relatively small site for a drive-through restaurant, at a corner location 
with two points of access.  This small size results in a number of potential turning conflicts 
between stacking cars, cars entering or leaving parking spaces, and cars entering or leaving 
the site. These potential turning conflicts, in addition to increasing potential vehicular and 
pedestrian conflicts, could negatively impact maneuverability and safety both on the site and 
in the immediate area.   

 
4. Impact on Public Services. The proposed Special Use shall be adequately served by essential public 

facilities and services, such as: streets, pedestrian or bicycle facilities, police and fire protection, 
drainage systems, refuse disposal, water and sewage facilities, and schools. Such services shall be 
provided and accommodated without an unreasonable public burden.  

 
The proposed use should not produce any additional impact on other public services, such as 
police or utilities, beyond what would normally be experienced for other uses in the district.  
However, based on findings of the traffic study, additional site plan changes and public street 
improvements may be necessary.   

 
5. Compliance with Zoning Ordinance Standards. The proposed Special Use shall be designed, 

constructed, operated and maintained to meet the stated intent of the zoning districts and shall 
comply with all applicable ordinance standards.  

 
The applicant is deficient, or potentially deficient in several zoning ordinance standards.  The 
applicant should either seek the required relief or amend site plan as noted.   

 
The Planning Commission is also required to generally consider the following for any special use 
application:  
 



Dequindre Tim Hortons - Conditional Rezoning, Special Use, and Site Plan Review.   

13 

1. The nature and character of the activities, processes, materials, equipment, or conditions of 
operation; either specifically or typically associated with the use.  

 
The small size results in a number of potential turning conflicts between stacking cars, cars 
entering or leaving parking spaces, and cars entering or leaving the site. These potential 
turning conflicts, in addition to increasing potential vehicular and pedestrian conflicts, could 
negatively impact maneuverability and safety both on the site and in the immediate area.   

 
2. Vehicular circulation and parking areas.  
 

The proposed site plan presents circulation and parking area issues.   
 
3. Outdoor activity, storage and work areas.  
 

The proposed use does not include any outdoor activity, storage, or work areas, thus this 
standard is not applicable.   

 
4. Hours of operation. 
   

While, the proposed use is in an area where similar uses provide service to neighborhood 
from early morning to evening, the use is proposed for 24-hours. A 24-hour drive-through use 
may impact the adjacently western property, specifically queuing cars and the noise of the 
menu board speaker.   

 
5. Production of traffic, noise vibration, smoke, fumes odors, dust, glare and light.  
 

A 24-hour drive-through use may impact the adjacently western property, specifically noise of 
the menu board speaker and noise, and fumes from queuing cars.   

 
Drive-Through 
 
Use Standards 
 
Section 6.10 provides specific use requirements for drive-through facilities.   
 
A. Ingress and egress to drive-through facilities shall be part of the internal circulation of the site and 

integrated with the overall site design. Clear identification and delineation between the drive-
through facility and the parking lot shall be provided. Drive-through facilities shall be designed in a 
manner which promotes pedestrian and vehicular safety. 

 
The subject parcel is approximately 0.678 acres in area. This is a relatively small site for a 
drive-through restaurant, particularly one on a corner, with two curb cuts. This small size 
results in a number of potential turning conflicts between stacking cars, cars entering or 
leaving parking spaces, and cars entering or leaving the site. These potential turning conflicts, 
in addition to increasing potential vehicular and pedestrian conflicts, could negatively impact 
maneuverability and safety both on the site and in the immediate area. 

 



Dequindre Tim Hortons - Conditional Rezoning, Special Use, and Site Plan Review.   

14 

B. Single-lane drive-throughs may be located at the side of a building. Multiple-lane drive-throughs 
shall be located in a manner that will be the least visible from a public thoroughfare. Canopy design 
shall be compatible with the design of the principal building and incorporate similar materials and 
architectural elements. 

 
Compliant 
 

C.  Each drive-through facility shall provide stacking space meeting the following standards: 
 

1. Each stacking lane shall be one-way, and each stacking lane space shall be a minimum 
of ten (10) feet in width and twenty (20) feet in length. 

2.  If proposed, an escape lane shall be a minimum of twelve (12) feet in width to allow 
other vehicles to pass those waiting to be served. 

3. The number of stacking spaces per service lane shall be provided for the uses listed 
below. When a use is not specifically mentioned, the requirements for off-street 
stacking space for the use with similar needs, as determined at the discretion of the 
Zoning Administration, shall apply. 

 
 Table 6.10 
Use Stacking Space Per Service Lane 
Banks, Pharmacy, Photo Service, and Dry Cleaning 4 
Restaurants with Drive-Through 10 
Auto Washes (Self-Service) 
   Entry 2 
   Exit 1 
Auto Washes (Automatic) 
   Entry 8 
   Exit 2 

 
The applicant has not provided adequate stacking area.  The tenth car stacking space 
protrudes into the drive-aisle creating a circulation issue.    

 
Sincerely,  
 
 

 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT JANUARY 8, 2013 
  
 
 

 

CONDITIONAL REZONING REQUEST 
 
5. PUBLIC HEARING – CONDITIONAL REZONING APPLICATION (File Number CR 008) 

– Proposed Tim Horton’s Café, Northwest Corner Square Lake and Dequindre, Section 1, 
From NN (Neighborhood Node “N”) to CB (Community Business) District 
 
Mr. Hutson informed the Board he has a client who might be involved in litigation with 
the petitioner’s law partner.  Mr. Hutson asked to recuse himself from discussion and 
deliberation on this item to avoid any appearance of impropriety.   
 
The Board had no objection to the request. 
 
[Mr. Hutson exited the meeting.] 
 
Mr. Carlisle gave a review of the Conditional Rezoning application.  Mr. Carlisle said the 
proposed drive-through use predicated on a conditional rezoning would not advance the 
Master Plan intent of the Neighborhood Node “N” zoning classification.  He addressed 
the size of the parcel in relation to the drive through, the restaurant use in terms of 
parking and the corner location with two access points. 
 
Mr. Carlisle further identified specific site plan issues: 
• Deficiency in parking spaces; 20 provided, 28 required. 
• Requirement of 10 stacking spaces; 10th stacking space protrudes into drive aisle. 
• Bisected / disjointed parking area. 
• Potential deficiency in overall landscape area; 20% required, plan does not indicate. 
• Impact on residential property to the west. 
• Access and internal traffic circulation; specifically in morning and evening hours. 
• Internal pedestrian circulation; both from parking lot to building and in location of 

menu/speaker board. 
• Lack of snow storage location. 
• Dumpster location; high visibility on Square Lake Road. 
• Unknown specifics from future traffic study; petitioner expressed feedback from 

Planning Commission prior to providing traffic study. 
 
Mr. Carlisle did not recommend approval of the Conditional Rezoning application, as 
submitted.  He offered the following suggestions: 
o Consider adding a portion, if not all, of the parcel to the north. 
o Keep restaurant use but eliminate the drive-through. 
o Consider an alternative use of site. 
 
Mr. Savidant announced the Planning Department received 16 email messages from 
residents in the area, of which copies were distributed to members prior to the beginning 
of tonight’s meeting. 
 
The petitioner, Burt Kassab, was present.  Mr. Kassab stated the property owner, Sam 
Askar, is present and in the audience.  Mr. Kassab addressed the size of the parcel.  He 
compared the proposed Tim Horton restaurant site to two existing Tim Horton 
restaurants in Troy on Rochester Road and Maple Road, as relates to parcel size and 
building size.  Mr. Kassab said they have tried to meet the Neighborhood Node 
requirements in every respect. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT JANUARY 8, 2013 
  
 
 

 

Mr. Kassab reported the overall landscaped area is 21.1%; exceeding the 20% 
requirement.  He stated Tim Horton’s corporate office is satisfied that the 20 parking 
spaces provided will be sufficient.  Mr. Kassab said the parcel to the north provides a 
great buffer to the residential neighborhood.  He addressed the location and decibel 
level of the menu/order board that faces Square Lake, indicating it should have no affect 
on the neighborhood.  Mr. Kassab said a drive through restaurant is a corporate 
requirement. 
 
Mark Kellenberger, Tim Horton’s project planner, was present.  Mr. Kellenberger said to 
his knowledge, all freestanding Tim Horton restaurants in Michigan are drive-through 
restaurants; those without drive-through’s are located in non-traditional locations. 
 
There was discussion on the following: 
• Curb cuts / access points. 

o Critical to petitioner to attract business from both Square Lake and Dequindre 
Roads. 

o Curb cuts currently exist, installed by City during widening of right of way. 
o Affect on development should traffic study determine elimination of one curb 

cut to potentially alleviate traffic issues. 
 Petitioner stated restaurant operations would likely not go forward with 

development. 
 Elimination could potentially create more traffic issues. 

o Engineering review had comments on curb cuts; asked petitioner to provide 
traffic study. 

• Deficiency of eight (8) parking spaces. 
o Restaurant operations satisfied proposed parking is sufficient. 

• Traffic, internal circulation, drive-through. 
o Morning hours draw majority of business, heaviest traffic and drive-through 

use. 
o Afternoon/evening hours light; new marketing strategy to attract customer 

base. 
o Configurations of turn lanes at intersection. 
o No escape lane proposed. 

• Buffer to residential. 
o Dense evergreens to west and north. 
o Fence around property line. 
o Parcel to north acts as buffer. 
o Masonry wall on west. 

• Noise levels; petitioner addressed menu board location. 
• Property to north; parcel larger in size than subject parcel. 
• Positive features of site plan, restaurant use and location. 

o Patio. 
o Walkability. 
o Two access points. 
o Good fit for potential customer base; nearby hospital. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT JANUARY 8, 2013 
  
 
 

 

PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
The following residents spoke in opposition: 
 

Tom Dombrowski 2900 Briarwood Ct 
Robert Cantlon 2864 Briarwood 
Prabhakar Vallury 2878 Briarwood 
Matthew Zelenak 2819 Briarwood 
Pari Tathavadekar 2861 Briarwood 
Lisa Havlish 2875 Briarwood 
Srivatsan Santhanam 2945 Briarwood 
Ritika Undemane 2892 Briarwood 
Anup Gongle 2936 Briarwood 
Norman Balston 2916 Briarwood 
Akram Muhammad 2978 Briarwood 

 
Residents who spoke in opposition expressed concerns with: 
 
• 24-hour operation. 
• Drive through facility. 
• Traffic congestion, signalization. 
• Internal circulation; stacking of cars. 
• Noise level. 
• Lights. 
• Garbage, litter. 
• Overall safety. 
• Safety of school children; bus pickup. 
• Re-use of existing vacant parcels. 
• Loitering; negative impact on children. 
• Non-friendly sidewalk/bicycle use. 
• Deviation from Master Plan intent. 
 
The following resident spoke in favor: 

G. James Grix 2508 Coral 
 
Mr. Grix said a restaurant would generate revenue, offer employment and a ‘go to’ 
place for the neighborhood.  He said other cities are attracting drive-through 
restaurants and potential revenue because Troy turns them away. 

 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Discussed followed: 
• Site plan design as relates to positive features and deficiencies. 

o Stacking spaces critical; no provision to waive Zoning Ordinance requirement. 
• Master Plan intent. 
• Responsibility of Planning Commission; health, safety and welfare of residents. 
• Potential impact / non-impact on neighboring residents. 
• Limited operational hours for drive through. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT JANUARY 8, 2013 
  
 
 

 

• Approval process. 
o Recommendation to City Council. 
o Conditions to site plan must be volunteered by petitioner. 
o Site plan, if approved, would not come back before Board. 

• Consider noise/decibel study. 
• Potential of traffic study to impact lay of the property. 

o Site plan might not come back before Board. 
• Legal opinion to complete Conditional Rezoning Agreement and traffic study prior to 

recommendation to City Council. 
 
The property owner, Sam Askar, addressed attempts to develop parcel after purchasing 
it from the City seven years ago.  Mr. Askar said the asking price of the property to the 
north is high, and even if acquired a larger Tim Horton restaurant would be proposed.  
He intimated that most likely the Tim Horton’s corporate office would go to another city 
with a proposal if the Board does not approve this application.  Mr. Askar, noting he is 
familiar with the area, addressed the concern expressed for the safety of school children. 
 
Mr. Kassab said he believes the asking price of the parcel to the north is above market 
and informed the Board that negotiations could not be reached with the two owners. 
 
Mr. Kassab said if the Board chose to postpone the item, he would work on traffic study 
issues and relocation of the dumpster. 
 
Resolution # PC-2013-01-003 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Krent 
 
RESOLVED, To postpone the item for thirty (30) days, not to exceed 30 days. 
 
Yes: All present (9) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 



N

N

Know what's below.

      Call before you dig.



N

Know what's below.

      Call before you dig.



Know what's below.

      Call before you dig.

N
SITE AREA 0.68 AC (29,488 SF)

ZONING NN

LAND USE DRIVE-THRU RESTAURANT

SITE DEVELOPMENT DATA REQUIRED PROPOSED

BUILDING
SETBACKS

FRONT 10 FT (MIN) 10 FT

SIDE 0 FT 64 FT

REAR 30 FT (MIN) 160 FT

BUILDING
INFORMATION

HEIGHT 14 FT (MIN);
45 FT (MAX) 20 FT - 4 IN

STORIES 1 (MIN); 3 (MAX) 1

G.F.A. N/A 1,953 SQ FT

COVERAGE
BUILDING N/A 6.6%

OPEN SPACE 30% 21.1%

PARKING

TOTAL SPACES 28 (MIN) 20

LENGTH 17 FT / 19 FT 17 FT / 19 FT

WIDTH 9.5 FT 9.5 FT

AISLE 24 FT 24 FT

ADA SPACES 1 2

LOADING 0 0

STACKING 10 10



Know what's below.

      Call before you dig.

N



Know what's below.

      Call before you dig.

N



Know what's below.

      Call before you dig.

N



© 2012 SHREMSHOCK ARCHITECTS, INC.
PROHIBITION OF REUSE:  THESE DRAWINGS AND SPECS
WERE PREPARED FOR USE ON A SPECIFIC SITE
CONTEMPORANEOUSLY WITH THEIR ISSUE DATE.  THEY
ARE NOT INTENDED FOR USE ON A DIFFERENT PROJECT
SITE OR AT A LATER TIME.  REUSE OF THESE DRAWINGS
AND SPECS, OR ANY REPRODUCTION THEREOF, ON
ANOTHER PROJECT IS PROHIBITED AND CONTRARY TO
LAW UNLESS EXPRESSLY AUTHORIZED IN WRITING BY
SHREMSHOCK ARCHITECTS, INC.

LAST DESIGN BULLETIN

ASIDE ELEVATION
1/4" = 1'-0"

BREAR ELEVATION
1/4" = 1'-0"



coffee  donuts  espresso  muffins  latte  bagels  cappuccino

coffee  donuts  espresso  muffins  bagels  cappuccino

© 2012 SHREMSHOCK ARCHITECTS, INC.
PROHIBITION OF REUSE:  THESE DRAWINGS AND SPECS
WERE PREPARED FOR USE ON A SPECIFIC SITE
CONTEMPORANEOUSLY WITH THEIR ISSUE DATE.  THEY
ARE NOT INTENDED FOR USE ON A DIFFERENT PROJECT
SITE OR AT A LATER TIME.  REUSE OF THESE DRAWINGS
AND SPECS, OR ANY REPRODUCTION THEREOF, ON
ANOTHER PROJECT IS PROHIBITED AND CONTRARY TO
LAW UNLESS EXPRESSLY AUTHORIZED IN WRITING BY
SHREMSHOCK ARCHITECTS, INC.

LAST DESIGN BULLETIN

1LAMP DETAIL
SCALE: 1-1/2" = 1'-0"

ASIDE ELEVATION
1/4" = 1'-0"

BFRONT ELEVATION
1/4" = 1'-0"

2RAIL DETAIL
3/4" = 1'-0"



COOLER

116

PUBLIC
AREA

101

27.5

1.1

1.1

74

4949 49

49 49 49

4949 49

49 49 49

70

REFERENCE
NORTH

FREEZER

115

BREAK
ROOM

113

© 2012 SHREMSHOCK ARCHITECTS, INC.
PROHIBITION OF REUSE:  THESE DRAWINGS AND SPECS
WERE PREPARED FOR USE ON A SPECIFIC SITE
CONTEMPORANEOUSLY WITH THEIR ISSUE DATE.  THEY
ARE NOT INTENDED FOR USE ON A DIFFERENT PROJECT
SITE OR AT A LATER TIME.  REUSE OF THESE DRAWINGS
AND SPECS, OR ANY REPRODUCTION THEREOF, ON
ANOTHER PROJECT IS PROHIBITED AND CONTRARY TO
LAW UNLESS EXPRESSLY AUTHORIZED IN WRITING BY
SHREMSHOCK ARCHITECTS, INC.

LAST DESIGN BULLETIN

1/4" = 1'-0"



  PC 2013.02.12 
  Agenda Item # 6 
 

 
 
 
 
DATE: February 7, 2013 
 
TO: Planning Commission 
 
FROM: R. Brent Savidant, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: PUBLIC HEARING – SPECIAL USE AND PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW 

 (File Number SU 400) – Proposed Starbucks/Qdoba Oakland Mall Outlot, 
 Northwest Corner of John R and 14 Mile, Section 35, Currently Zoned GB (
 General Business) District 

 
The petitioner Urban Retail Properties submitted the above referenced Special Use Approval 
and Preliminary Site Plan Approval application for a proposed Starbucks/Qdoba outlot 
restaurant.  The site is presently an underutilized parking lot.   
 
The attached report prepared by Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. (CWA), the City’s Planning 
Consultant, summarizes the application.  CWA prepared the report with input from various City 
departments including Planning, Engineering, Public Works and Fire.  City Management 
supports the findings of fact contained in the report and recommends approval of the project, as 
noted. 
 
 
Attachments: 

1. Maps 
2. Report prepared by Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 

 
cc: Applicant 
 File/ SU 400 
 
G:\SPECIAL USE\SU 400  Starbucks Qdoba Oakland Mall Outlot  Sec 35\PC Memo 02 12 2013.docx 



PROPOSED RESOLUTION 
 
PUBLIC HEARING – SPECIAL USE AND PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File 
Number SU 400) – Proposed Starbucks/Qdoba Oakland Mall Outlot, Northwest Corner of 
John R and 14 Mile, Section 35, Currently Zoned GB (General Business) District 
 
Resolution # PC-2013-02- 
Moved by: 
Seconded by: 
 
RESOLVED, That Special Use Approval and Preliminary Site Plan Approval for the 
proposed Starbucks/Qdoba Restaurant, located on the northwest corner of John R and 14 
Mile, Section 35, currently zoned GB (General Business) District, be granted, subject to the 
following: 
 

1. Confirm that ten (10) stacking spaces can be provided. 
2.  Indicated location of bike rack on site plan.     
3. Provide a sidewalk along their section of Fourteen Mile road. 
4. Consider extending sidewalk to bus stop. 
5. Provide sidewalk and crosswalk to connect the Fourteen Mile sidewalk to the 

pedestrian ramp. 
6. Add one (1) additional parking lot tree. 
7. Confirm number of parking lot lights. 
8.  Resubmit parking lot light fixture. 
9.  Confirm that bollard light is full cut-off or fully shielded.    
10. Reduce the lighting levels under the parking lot fixtures. 

 
Yes: 
No: 
Absent: 
 
MOTION CARRIED / FAILED 
 
 
 
G:\SPECIAL USE\SU 400  Starbucks Qdoba Oakland Mall Outlot  Sec 35\Proposed Resolution 2013 02 12.doc 



Starbucks / Qdoba Oakland Mall Outlot

Legend

1: 878

City of Troy Planning Department

Printed:

730146 146Feet

Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded deeds, plats, tax maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It 
is not a legally recorded map survey. Users of this data are hereby notified that the source information represented should be consulted for verification.

Scale

1/21/2013



Starbucks/Qdoba Oakland Mall Outlot

Legend

1: 878

City of Troy Planning Department

Printed:

730146 146Feet

Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded deeds, plats, tax maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It 
is not a legally recorded map survey. Users of this data are hereby notified that the source information represented should be consulted for verification.

Scale

1/21/2013

Form Based Zoning (Current)
(PUD) Planned Unit Development

(CF) Community Facilities District

(EP) Environmental Protection District

(BB) Big Beaver Road (Form Based)

(MRF) Maple Road (Form Based)

(NN) Neighborhood Nodes (A-U)

(CB) Community Business

(GB) General Business

(IB) Integrated Industrial Business District

(O) Office Building District

(OM) Office Mixed Use

(P) Vehicular Parking District

(R-1A) One Family Residential District

(R-1B) One Family Residential District

(R-1C) One Family Residential District

(R-1D) One Family Residential District

(R-1E) One Family Residential District

(RT) One Family Attached Residential District

(MR) Multi-Family Residential

(MHP) Manufactured Housing

(UR) Urban Residential

(RC) Research Center District

(PV) Planned Vehicle Sales



 

  

605 S. Main Street, Ste. 1 
Ann Arbor, MI  48104 
 
(734) 662-2200 
(734) 662-1935 Fax 

 
Date:  February 29, 2012 

 

Preliminary Site Plan and Special Use Review 
For 

City of Troy, Michigan 
 
 
 
 
Applicant: Professional Engineering Associates 
 
Project Name: Starbucks/Qdoba Restaurants Outlot 
 
Plan Date: Application dated January 10, 2012 
 
Location: North Side of W. Fourteen Mile Road (Oakland County Mall)   
 
Zoning: GB, General Business District 
 
Action Requested: Preliminary Site Plan and Special Use Approval 
 
Required Information: Deficiencies noted 
 
 
PROJECT AND SITE DESCRIPTION 
 
We received a site plan and accompanying documents for a proposed commercial infill development 
within the Oakland Mall site.   The applicant is proposing a 2,500 sq/ft Qdoba and a 1,900 sq/ft 
Starbucks with a drive-thru.   The proposed development fronts on Fourteen Mile Road; however there 
is no direct curb-cut off Fourteen Mile Road.  Access to the development will be via an internal drive 
that services Oakland Mall.  The development is located between the existing Chili’s and Bank of 
America. The drive-through use requires a special use.    
 
The site plan indicates that this developed area will not be split from the Oakland Mall parcel.  The 
applicant will need to clarify the lot split with the City Assessor.    
 
 
 
 



Carlisle Wortman Associates, Inc. 
2  P a g e  

Location of Subject Property: 
The property is located on the north side of Fourteen Mile Road.  Located within Oakland Mall site 
between existing Chili’s and Bank of America. 
 
 

 
 
Size of Subject Property: 
Oakland Mall Parcel: 23.6 acres 
Development Area: 1.3 acres 
 
Proposed Uses of Subject Parcel: 
The applicant is proposing a 2,500 sq/ft Qdoba and a 1,900 sq/ft Starbucks with a drive-thru.    
 
Current Use of Subject Property: 
Parking for Oakland Mall 
 
Current Zoning: 
The property is currently zoned GB, General Business District.  
 

Direction Zoning Use 
North  GB, General Business Oakland Mall 
South Madison Heights Commercial  
East GB, General Business Bank of America  
West GB, General Business Chili’s 
 



Carlisle Wortman Associates, Inc. 
3  P a g e  

BUILDING ARRANGEMENT 
 

The proposed building is oriented towards the southern end of the site adjacent to Fourteen Mile Road.  
The drive-thru runs along the western property line and is separated from the rest of the site with a 
curb.  All parking is located behind the building.  The trash enclosure is located in the northeast corner 
of the site adjacent to the Oakland Mall drive-aisle.  
 
 Items to be Addressed: None.   
 
AREA, WIDTH, HEIGHT, SETBACKS 
 
Required and Provided Dimensions: 
Section 4.14.C establishes the dimensional requirements for the GB District.  The requirements and the 
proposed dimensions are as follows: 
 

 
The building meets all GB District requirements. 
 
Items to be Addressed: None 
 

PARKING 
 
Section 13.06.G of the Zoning Ordinance requires: 
 
 Required Provided 
Fast Food Restaurant: 
1 space per 70 sq.ft of net floor 
area 

3,914 sq.ft / 70 = 56 spaces 
 
 
 
 

44 spaces 

Stacking: 10 spaces 10 spaces  
 

9 spaces 

Total 56 spaces + 10 stacking spaces 44 spaces + 9 stacking spaces  

   
Barrier Free 2 2 
Bicycle Parking 2 2 
Loading 0 0 

 Required: Provided: Compliance 

Front (Fourteen Mile) 10 feet  minimum setback 49 feet Complies 

Side (east) 20 feet  minimum setback 62 feet Complies 

Side (west) 20 feet  minimum setback 41 feet Complies 

Building Height Maximum 5 stories, 75 feet 22 feet, 8 inches Complies 



Carlisle Wortman Associates, Inc. 
4  P a g e  

Total 56 spaces +10 stacking spaces + 2 
bicycle 

44 spaces + 9 stacking 
spaces + 0 bicycle 

 
The applicant is seeking a parking deviation of 12 spaces.   The Planning Commission is able to grant 
such deviation provided that the applicant supply evidence that the site provides a sufficient number of 
parking spaces to accommodate the use.  The applicant notes that the excess parking in the Oakland 
Mall can accommodate any overflow parking.  Looking at the site and surrounding area, we find that 
due to the excess parking of the Oakland Mall, parking should be sufficient.  There may be some times 
when customers may need to park in the excess Oakland Mall parking area.  However, we also note that 
once the Starbucks/ Qdoba lot is filled, customers will use the Chili’s and Bank of America lots, which 
provide some parking very close to the proposed development building entrance.  The applicant should 
confirm that they have spoken to both entities in regards to potential parking conflicts and are able to 
provide solutions should a parking dispute arise.       
 
The applicant is deficient in staking spaces by one (1).   The applicant should confirm that ten (10) 
stacking spaces can be provided.  The applicant has submitted details of a bike rack however the 
location is not indicated on the site plan.    
   
Items to be Addressed: 1) Confirm that they spoke to both entities in regards to potential parking 
conflicts and are able to provide solutions should a parking dispute arise; 2) Confirm that ten (10) 
stacking spaces can be provided; and 3). Indicate location of bike rack on site plan.     
 
 
SITE ACCESS AND CIRCULATION 
 
Vehicular access and Circulation 
 
The site will be accessed via an internal drive serving the Oakland Mall.   There is a separate access point 
for the drive-thru lane and the drive-thru has an escape point.  The single-lane drive-thru lane expands 
to two after the pickup window.  The applicant should explain the need for the second drive-aisle past 
the pickup window.    
 
Pedestrian access:  
 
There is currently no sidewalk along this stretch of Fourteen Mile Road. See diagram below: 
  

 
 
At a minimum the applicant should provide a sidewalk along their section of Fourteen Mile.  When/if 
Chili’s or Bank of America develop, sidewalks will be added to their portion of Fourteen Mile.  In 
addition, applicant should consider extending the sidewalk to the bus stop that is located in front of the 

No sidewalk 
Sidewalk 



Carlisle Wortman Associates, Inc. 
5  P a g e  

Chili’s. Lastly, the applicant should provide a sidewalk and crosswalk across the drive aisle that connects 
the Fourteen Mile sidewalk to the pedestrian ramp in front of the building.   
 
Items to be Addressed: 1). Explain the need for the second drive-aisle past the pickup window; 2). 
Provide a sidewalk along their section of Fourteen Mile; 3). Consider extending sidewalk to bus stop; and 
4). Provide sidewalk and crosswalk to connect the Fourteen Mile sidewalk to the pedestrian ramp. 
 
LANDSCAPING 
 
The applicant has provided a landscape plan.  The plan provides all necessary calculations regarding 
greenbelt, street trees, and parking lot landscaping requirements.   
 

 Required: Provided: Compliance: 

Street Trees: The Ordinance requires that 
the greenbelt shall be landscaped with a 
minimum of one (1) deciduous tree for 
every thirty (30) lineal feet, or fraction 
thereof, of frontage abutting a public road 
right-of-way.   

180 feet = 6 
trees 

6 
 

Compliant  
 

Site landscaping: A minimum of twenty 
percent (20%) of the site area shall be 
comprised of landscape material. 

20% 21.1% Compliant 

Parking Lot Landscaping:  1 tree for every 
8 parking spaces.  Trees may be located 
adjacent to parking lot with planning 
commission approval.   

Required 56 
spaces = 7 
trees 

6  trees Add 1 parking lot 
tree 

 
Trash Enclosure: 
 
The applicant has provided the trash enclosure details.   
 
Items to be Addressed: Add one (1) additional parking lot tree 
 
PHOTOMETRICS 
 
The applicant has provided a lighting (photometric) plan.  The lighting schedule indicates nine (9) 
parking lot pole lights; however the site plan only shows two (2) poles and four (4) lights.  The applicant 
should confirm the number.  In addition, the submitted fixture for the parking lot lights does not meet 
the ordinance requirement of full cut-off or a fully shielded fixture, downward directed with a flat lens.  
The applicant should resubmit the fixture.   
 
The applicant proposes three different building fixtures, a total of twelve (12) lights total.  The fixtures 
submitted meet ordinance requirements.  In addition, the applicant is proposing seven (7) bollard style 
lights in the planters that front the building and the east elevation.  The applicant shall confirm that this 
is a full cut-off or a fully shielded fixture.    
 



Carlisle Wortman Associates, Inc. 
6  P a g e  

The photometric exceed the allowable levels underneath the parking lot fixtures.  The applicant will 
need to reduce these levels.   
  
Items to be Addressed:  1). Confirm number of parking lot lights; 2). Resubmit parking lot light fixture; 
3). Confirm that bollard light is full cut-off or fully shielded; and 4). Reduce the lighting levels under the 
parking lot fixtures.  
 
FLOOR PLANS and ELEVATIONS  
 
The applicant has submitted floor plans and elevations.  The building is constructed with modular brick 
with EIFs elements for the sign panels.   A requirement of the GB district is that the maximum length of 
an uninterrupted building façade facing public streets and/or parks shall be thirty (30) feet.  The 
applicant meets that requirement.   
 
Items to be Addressed: None 
 
SPECIAL USE  
 
In the GB District, restaurant with drive-through service is permitted as a special use. For any special 
use, according to Section 9.02.D, the Planning Commission shall “…review the request, supplementary 
materials either in support or opposition thereto, as well as the Planning Department’s report, at a Public 
Hearing established for that purpose, and shall either grant or deny the request, table action on the 
request, or grant the request subject to specific conditions.” 
 
Use Standards 
 
Section 6.10 provides specific use requirements for drive-through facilities. The standards for stacking 
lane are not met by the site plan. The applicant shall confirm that sufficient stacking space can be 
provided.  
 
Standards of Approval 
 
Section 9.03 states that before approving any requests for Special Use Approval, the Planning 
Commission shall consider: 
 
1. Compatibility with Adjacent Uses. The Special Use shall be designed and constructed in a manner 

harmonious with the character of adjacent property and the surrounding area. In determining 
whether a Special Use will be harmonious and not create a significant detrimental impact, as 
compared to the impacts of permitted uses. The proposed use is intended for a location within areas 
of high traffic.  The proposed use will not have any detrimental impact and will add a service to the 
immediate commercial corridor. 

 
2. Compatibility with the Master Plan. The proposed Special Use shall be compatible and in accordance 

with the goals and objectives of the City of Troy Master Plan and any associated sub-area and 
corridor plans. The use is common to regional commercial area, and complies with the Master Plan. 

 
3. Traffic Impact. The proposed Special Use shall be located and designed in a manner which will 

minimize the impact of traffic, taking into consideration: pedestrian access and safety; vehicle trip 



Carlisle Wortman Associates, Inc. 
7  P a g e  

generation (i.e. volumes); types of traffic, access location, and design, circulation and parking design; 
street and bridge capacity and, traffic operations at nearby intersections and access points. Efforts 
shall be made to ensure that multiple transportation modes are safely and effectively accommodated 
in an effort to provide alternate modes of access and alleviate vehicular traffic congestion.  

  
 With access via the existing internal drive-aisle, the proposed use will not impact traffic on public 

road.  Internally the drive-through, trash pickup, and loading have adequate spaces for services 
needed.   

 
4. Impact on Public Services. The proposed Special Use shall be adequately served by essential public 

facilities and services, such as: streets, pedestrian or bicycle facilities, police and fire protection, 
drainage systems, refuse disposal, water and sewage facilities, and schools. Such services shall be 
provided and accommodated without an unreasonable public burden. The proposed use will cause 
additional impact on other public services, such as police or utilities, beyond what would normally 
be experienced for other uses in the district.  

 
5. Compliance with Zoning Ordinance Standards. The proposed Special Use shall be designed, 

constructed, operated and maintained to meet the stated intent of the zoning districts and shall 
comply with all applicable ordinance standards. Several items need to be addressed, as noted herein, 
to meet this requirement. 

 
The Planning Commission is also required to generally consider the following for any special use 
application:  
 
1. The nature and character of the activities, processes, materials, equipment, or conditions of operation; 

either specifically or typically associated with the use. See above.  Provided site planning issues are 
addressed the proposed use may be permissible in the proposed location. 

 
2. Vehicular circulation and parking areas. Provide the applicant address the widening of the drive-

through lane, vehicular circulation is sufficient.  While parking is deficient, due to the excess 
parking in the Oakland Mall, parking should be sufficient.    

 
3. Outdoor activity, storage and work areas. N/A. 
 
4. Hours of operation. The proposed use is in an area where similar uses provide service to regional 

commercial customers from early morning to evening.  This is a high-intensity area and automobile 
service uses are common in such areas. 

 
5. Production of traffic, noise vibration, smoke, fumes odors, dust, glare and light. We do not anticipate 

any additional impact after initial construction in this regard. 
 
Items to be addressed: Address Ordinance compliance issues noted herein. 
 
 
 
 
 



Carlisle Wortman Associates, Inc. 
8  P a g e  

RECOMMENDATION 
 
We support the proposed project and believe the project does meet or exceed minimum requirements, 
with several small conditions for clarification and compliance with minor elements required by the 
Zoning Ordinance. Provided that the applicant can justify the parking reduction and the second drive-
aisle in front of the building to the satisfaction of the Planning Commission, we recommend the Planning 
Commission approve the special use request and preliminary site plan application conditioned on the 
applicant satisfying the following requirements for the final site plan: 
 

1. Confirm that ten (10) stacking spaces can be provided. 
2.  Indicated location of bike rack on site plan.     
3. Provide a sidewalk along their section of Fourteen Mile road. 
4. Consider extending sidewalk to bus stop. 
5. Provide sidewalk and crosswalk to connect the Fourteen Mile sidewalk to the pedestrian ramp. 
6. Add one (1) additional parking lot tree. 
7. Confirm number of parking lot lights. 
8.  Resubmit parking lot light fixture. 
9.  Confirm that bollard light is full cut-off or fully shielded.    
10. Reduce the lighting levels under the parking lot fixtures. 

 
 
Sincerely,  
 
Ben Carlisle  
 
 

 
  
 



















NORTH

4'
-1

 3
/4

"

Tr
as

h
Tr

as
h

WH

URBAN



URBAN



URBAN



URBAN

































  PC 2012.02.12 
  Agenda Item # 7 
 

 
 
DATE: February 7, 2013 
 
TO: Planning Commission 
 
FROM: R. Brent Savidant, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number SP 979) – Proposed Galleria of 

 Troy, North side of Big Beaver between Wilshire and I-75, Section 21, Currently 
 Zoned BB (Big Beaver) District 

 
 
The petitioner Galleria of Toy LLC submitted the above referenced Preliminary Site Plan 
Approval application for two restaurants, a retail building and future hotel(s) within the Big 
Beaver corridor.   
 
The property is currently zoned BB (Big Beaver) District.  The Planning Commission is 
responsible for granting Preliminary Site Plan Approval for this item. The Planning Commission 
reviewed the site plan on December 11, 2012 but did not take action. 
 
The attached report prepared by Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. (CWA), the City’s Planning 
Consultant, summarizes the project.  CWA prepared the report with input from various City 
departments including Planning, Engineering, Public Works and Fire.  City Management 
supports the findings of fact contained in the report and the recommendations included therein.   
 
 
Attachments: 

1. Maps 
2. Report prepared by Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 
3. Minutes from December 11, 2012 Planning Commission Regular meeting (excerpt). 

 
 
 
G:\SITE PLANS\SP 979  Galleria of Troy LLC  Sec 21\SP-979 PC Memo 02 12 2013.docx 



PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW 
 
PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number SP 979) – Proposed Galleria of Troy, 
North side of Big Beaver between Wilshire and I-75, Section 21, Currently Zoned BB (Big 
Beaver) District 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2012-02- 
Moved by:  
Seconded by:  
 
RESOLVED, That Preliminary Site Plan Approval, pursuant to Article 8 of the Zoning 
Ordinance, as requested for the proposed Galleria of Troy, located on the north side 
of Big Beaver between Wilshire and I-75, Section 21, within the BB (Big Beaver) 
district, be granted, for the following reasons:  
 ) or 
 
(denied, for the following reasons:  ) or 
 
(postponed, for the following reasons:  ) 
 
 
Yes:  
No:  
 
MOTION CARRIED/FAILED 
 
 
 
G:\SITE PLANS\SP 979  Galleria of Troy LLC  Sec 21\Proposed PC Resolution 02 12 2013.doc 



Preliminary Site Plan, Galleria of Gift LLC

11/13/2012

Legend

1: 1,872

City of Troy Planning Department

Printed:

1560312 312Feet

Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded deeds, plats, tax maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It 
is not a legally recorded map survey. Users of this data are hereby notified that the source information represented should be consulted for verification.

Scale

I-75
Road Centerline

Major Road
Industrial Road
Local Road

Ponds and Basins
Streams and Creeks
Parcels
Aerial Photos - 2010

Red:    Band_1
Green: Band_2
Blue:   Band_3



Preliminary Site Plan, Galleria of Gift LLC

11/13/2012

Legend

1: 2,059

City of Troy Planning Department

Printed:

1720343 343Feet

Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded deeds, plats, tax maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It 
is not a legally recorded map survey. Users of this data are hereby notified that the source information represented should be consulted for verification.

Scale

I-75
Road Centerline

Major Road
Industrial Road
Local Road

Current Zoning Ordinance
(PUD) Planned Unit Development
(CF) Community Facilities District
(EP) Environmental Protection District
(BB) Big Beaver Road (Form Based)
(MRF) Maple Road (Form Based)
(NN) Neighborhood Nodes (A-U)
(CB) Community Business
(GB) General Business
(IB) Integrated Industrial Business District
(O) Office Building District
(OM) Office Mixed Use
(P) Vehicular Parking District
(R-1A) One Family Residential District
(R-1B) One Family Residential District
(R-1C) One Family Residential District
(R-1D) One Family Residential District
(R-1E) One Family Residential District
(RT) One Family Attached Residential District
(MR) Multi-Family Residential
(MHP) Manufactured Housing
(UR) Urban Residential
(RC) Research Center District
(PV) Planned Vehicle Sales

Ponds and Basins
Streams and Creeks
Parcels
Aerial Photos - 2010

Red:    Band_1
Green: Band_2
Blue:   Band_3



 
 
 
  Revised: February 4, 2013 

 

Preliminary Site Plan Review  
For 

City of Troy, Michigan 
 
 
 
 
Applicant: Group 10 Management 
 
Project Name: Galleria of Troy  
 
Plan Date: January 25, 2013 
 
Location:  Northeast corner of Big Beaver Road and Troy Center Drive Drive 
 
Zoning: BB, Big Beaver Form-based district 
 
Action Requested: Preliminary Site Plan Approval  
 
Required Information: Deficiencies noted 
 
 
PROJECT AND SITE DESCRIPTION 
 
We received a site plan and accompanying documents for a proposed commercial development at the 
parcel located at the northeast corner of Big Beaver and Wilshire/Troy Plaza Drive.   The applicant is 
proposing a restaurant, retail, and hotel development on the existing vacant 5.9 acre site.  The applicant 
proposes to develop the site in two phases.  The proposed first phase is the development of three pad 
sites that front on Big Beaver Road.  The front eastern pad will be a Carrabbas Italian Grill, the front 
western pad will be a Bonefish Grill, and the user(s) of the front middle pad has not been determined.  
The applicant has labeled the middle pad as retail; however in discussions with the applicant they have 
indicated that this pad might include some restaurant uses.  Access to this phase will be via two (2) curb 
cuts off Troy Center Drive.    
 
The second phase will be the development of the back end of the site for hotel use.  The applicant has 
not submitted a site plan but has indicated the potential for up to two (2) hotels.   The applicant has not 



Galleria of Troy 
February 4, 2013 

2 

indicated the timing of the second phase.  This second phase is not included in this review and will 
require a future site plan review at the time of proposed buildout.   
 
The property is zoned Big Beaver Form-Based District.  The proposed development and mix of uses are 
by-right and only require Site Plan Review approval from the Planning Commission.   
 
Location of Subject Property: 
Northeast corner of Big Beaver Road and Troy Center Drive 
 
Proposed Uses of Subject Parcel: 
First Phase: Restaurant and Retail 
Second Phase: Hotel  
 
Current Use of Subject Property: 
Vacant 
 
Current Zoning: 
The property is currently zoned Big Beaver Form Based Code, site type A. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Phase 2: Future Hotel Use  

Phase 1: Commercial  



Galleria of Troy 
February 4, 2013 

3 

 
Direction Zoning Use 

North  BB, Big Beaver Form Based Vacant / Parking 
South BB, Big Beaver Form Based Commercial  
East I-75 I-75 
West BB, Big Beaver Form Based Commercial 
 

MASTER PLAN 
 
The site was identified in the Big Beaver Corridor Study as one of five Corridor “Gateway” locations.  The 
plan calls for:  

• Building from lot line to lot line along the right-of-way rather than continuing to be a collection 
of isolated towers.     

• Multiple level buildings which includes vertically integrated mixed-use commercial, office and 
residential towers.   

• The use of prominent ground floor retail, restaurants and cafes allows visual interest and activity 
for visitors and residents.       

• Contain parking in structures that are shared by surrounding developments.   
• Parking in rear and not visible from major throughfares.  
• Buildings set close to the street. 

 
Though desired by the Master Plan a single large building or multiple storied buildings along Big Beaver 
at this site might not achievable.  However, there is an opportunity to develop a well-integrate site that 
includes creative yet consistent designed buildings.   While we recognize that there are a multitude of 
different architectural styles and patterns along Big Beaver, creating site integration, cohesiveness, and 
a consistent design pattern both between and among this site is important.    Because of its high 
visibility and prominence along Big Beaver, a key to site integration and cohesiveness, is a consistent 
building design pattern as well as the treatment and interaction between the buildings and the 
public/semi-public space along Big Beaver.   
 
Items to be Addressed: Address site plan issues to ensure development is consistent with Master Plan.     

 
BUILDING ORIENTATION AND OVERALL SITE LAYOUT 
 
Through a semi-public plaza/streetscape design along Big Beaver, the applicant has provided some site 
integration.  However, site cohesiveness and integration is predicated on a common design element for 
the buildings fronting along Big Beaver.  Due to corporate desires, building design/frontage consistency 
might be more difficult (see floor plans and elevation section for more detail).   
 
In addition, the Planning Commission requested consideration of moving the hotel portion of the 
development closer to Big Beaver and putting portions of the restaurant/retail and hotel parking behind 
the hotel building. The applicant should address if this was considered and if so, why it is not achievable.   
 
Items to be Addressed:  Address concept of moving hotel building closer to Big Beaver. 
 
 



Galleria of Troy 
February 4, 2013 

4 

AREA, WIDTH, HEIGHT, SETBACKS 
 
Required and Provided Dimensions: 
 
The site is being developed with three Building Form A buildings.  Building Form A is a permitted building 
form for Site Type C.  Table 5.03.B1 establishes the dimensional requirements for the building form A: 
 

 
The Planning Commission may adjust the required building line to a maximum of 30-feet beyond the 
property line for projects incorporating a permanent space for an outdoor café, public space, or a cross 
access drive with an adjacent parcel.  The Carabbas and Bonefish has been setback 30 feet to 
incorporate a plaza/streetscape and outdoor seating.   The retail building is setback 35 feet, which is 
outside of the allowable 30-foot setback.  The retail building must be moved up closer to Big Beaver 
Road.   
 
In the form-based districts, all parking shall be located in a side or rear yard.  Parking is located behind 
the buildings that front along Big Beaver Road.  However, because this is a corner site, the parking must 
be located behind the font building line along Troy Center Drive Road.  The parking along Troy Center 
Drive Road must be located at least 30-feet from the property line.   In addition, a requirement of the 

  
Required / 
Allowed  

Provided 
Compliance 

Front (Big Beaver) 10 foot build-to-line Carrabas:  30 feet Within Planning 
Commission allowance 

(see below) 
Retail: 35 feet Does not comply 

Bonefish: 30 feet Within Planning 
Commission allowance 

(see below) 
Front (Troy Center 

Drive) 
10 foot build-to-line Bonefish: 30 feet  Within Planning 

Commission allowance 
(see below) 

Rear 30 foot minimum 500 feet Complies 

Side  0 foot 25.50 feet Complies 

Landscape Area 20 percent 25% Complies 

Open Space 30 percent 44.9 % Complies 

Building Height Minimum 14 feet 
Maximum 45 feet 

18 feet Complies 

Parking Big Beaver:  Not located 
in front yard and 

screening 

Not located in 
front yard and 

screened 

Complies 

Troy Center Drive: Not 
located in front yard 

and screened 

Parking is located 
in front yard 

Does not comply (see 
parking section below for 

more details).  



Galleria of Troy 
February 4, 2013 

5 

Big Beaver form-based district requires that along corner lots, parking shall be not occupy more than 
fifty (50) percent of the site’s cumulative linear feet along the required building lines or one hundred 
(100) feet, whichever is less.  The parking along Troy Center Drive Drive exceeds the allowable 100 feet 
in length.  The applicant shall reduce the total amount of parking located along Troy Center Drive Drive.   
 
Items to be Addressed: 1). Move retail building closer to Big Beaver Road; 2). Reduce parking along Troy 
Center Drive; and 3). For remaining parking along Troy Center Drive,  setback parking at least thirty feet 
back. 
 
PARKING 
 
For the various uses Section 13.06.G of the Zoning Ordinance requires:  
 
 Required Provided 
Restaurant: 
1 space per 2 seats 
 
 

459 seats= 230 spaces 
 
 
 
 

267 spaces  

Retail: 
 1 space per 250 gross sq/ft 

8,960 sq/ft = 36 spaces 
 

Total 266 spaces 

   
Barrier Free 7 8 
Bicycle Parking 2 0 
Loading 0 0 
Total 266 automobile + 2 bicycle 267 spaces + 0 bicycle 
 
The applicant has provided the necessary automobile parking; however as noted the parking location 
along Troy Center Drive is not permitted.   
 
Items to be Addressed:  Incorporate bicycle parking as part of the pedestrian realm on Big Beaver.  
 
SITE ACCESS, and CIRCULATION 
 
Access to the site is provided via two curb-cuts off Troy Center Drive.  The front row of parking (adjacent 
to building) is primarily reserved for handicapped and “to go” parking spaces.  The traffic engineering 
department has confirmed that access and circulation is sufficient.    The hotel phase of the 
development will have to consider traffic, access, and circulation from this first phase.  
 
Items to be Addressed:  None    
 
FLOOR PLAN AND ELEVATIONS 
 
We find that the applicant has made significant improvements to the elevations, particularly the retail 
building and Bonefish.  However we do provide the following architectural comments:  
 



Galleria of Troy 
February 4, 2013 

6 

Bonefish Grill: 
• The trash enclosure area is located at the northeast corner of the building which is directly 

adjacent to the pedestrian walkway.  If the applicant is not able to provide a common trash 
enclosure area for all three (3) buildings, the applicant should either relocate the Bonefish trash 
enclosure area inside the building or relocate the outdoor trash enclosure to the northwest 
corner of the building.    

• E.I.F. should not be used as primary material and rather used as accent material.   There is a 
significant amount of EIF on all elevations.   

• Consider adding more height or variety in roof.   
• Include greater massing and bulk where possible for the Bonefish and Carrabbas’ building.  The 

second story for these buildings could include a small lounge, bar, or outdoor roof patio. 
 
Retail Building:  

• Is the balcony accessible directly from building?  Who is the future tenant of the corresponding 
space?   

• Should the balcony seating be provided on west balcony? 
• Provide more details about public art.  Is what shown on the elevations the actual piece 

provided?  
• Explain vision in regards to amount of different materials and mix of horizontal and vertical 

elements. 
• Does the brick (color, type, etc) of the retail building match Bonefish?  

 
Carrabba’s: 

• The chosen building design and material use is not consistent with the Big Beaver Design 
Guidelines. Specifically, the Big Beaver Design Guidelines state that all buildings on Big Beaver 
should be “unique and attractive structures built of high-quality materials and should avoid 
being “branded” so as to allow for their adaptation to future tenants.”  

• The Carrabbas color scheme is bright and does not correspond nor consistent with the retail 
building or Bonefish.  Match color scheme of retail building and Bonefish. 

• Match brick of retail building and Bonefish. 
• Add transparency along west and north elevation.  
• E.I.F. wall on south elevation (fronting Big Beaver) should be revised.   
• Elevations do not show access to the trash enclosure area.   
• Consider adding more height or variety in roof.   
• Include greater massing and bulk where possible for the Bonefish and Carrabbas’ building.  The 

second story for these buildings could include a small lounge, bar, or outdoor roof patio. 
 
Design Consistency:  
 
Though free-standing buildings, there is an opportunity to provide a consistent design pattern for all 
three.  While there are elements of the Bonefish and the retail building appear to have some 
consistency, the Carrabbas appears “branded” to the national prototype and does not appear to carry 
any of the common design elements.   
 
The applicant should indicate the use of materials and design features that provide design consistency 
between the retail building, Bonefish and Carrabbas.  In addition, as requested by the Planning 
Commission, the applicant did not provide a color rendering along the entire length of Big Beaver 



Galleria of Troy 
February 4, 2013 

7 

showing all three buildings and their relationship to Big Beaver.   Such perspective should be submitted 
and should include the proposed streetscape and pedestrian realm area.   The purpose of the rendering 
is to ensure design interest and consistency along Big Beaver.   
    
Items to be Addressed:  1). Address architectural comments for each building; 2) Provide narrative 
indicating the use of materials and design features that provide design consistency between the retail 
building, Bonefish and Carrabbas; and 3). Provide color rendering along entire length of Big Beaver.  
 
PEDESTRIAN CIRCULATION 
 
The applicant is greatly improving external and internal site pedestrian circulation.  The applicant is 
providing a 7-foot wide pedestrian spine through the site, which connects the commercial portion of the 
development to the future hotel use.  In addition, the applicant is proposing a full sidewalk along the 
entire length of Troy Center Drive.   
 
Along Big Beaver, the applicant 
is proposing a significant 
benefit via pedestrian 
enhancements by improving 
the “Pedestrian Realm (area 
between building and 
roadway)” with the following 
features:  

• 30-feet in depth of 
pedestrian area 

• Landscape planter 
boxes 

• Public art in front of 
retail buildings 

• Future outdoor seating  
• Lighting 
• Trash cans 
• Benches at restaurant 

building. 
 
As shown in the Big Beaver Design Guidelines, the applicant should incorporate additional features in 
the pedestrian realm:  

• Paving or alternative material for expanded sidewalk to differentiate public and semi-public 
spaces 

• Benches along Big Beaver 
• Pedestrian style pole lighting in pedestrian realm  
• Bike rack 

 
With slight improvements, these pedestrian amenities along Big Beaver not only advance the intent of 
the Master Plan and provide a significant site amenity.    
 



Galleria of Troy 
February 4, 2013 

8 

Items to be Addressed: Incorporate additional elements into the pedestrian realm as outline in the Big 
Beaver Design Guidelines.    
 
LANDSCAPING 
 
The applicant has provided a landscape plan.  The plan provides all necessary calculations regarding 
greenbelt, street trees, and parking lot landscaping requirements.   
 

 Required: Provided: Compliance: 

Street Trees: The Ordinance requires that 
the greenbelt shall be landscaped with a 
minimum of one (1) deciduous tree for 
every thirty (30) lineal feet, or fraction 
thereof, of frontage abutting a public road 
right-of-way.   

Big Beaver:  13 13 
 

Compliant  

Troy Center 
Drive: 15 

15 Compliant 

Site landscaping: A minimum of twenty 
percent (20%) of the site area shall be 
comprised of landscape material. 

20% The applicant 
indicates 45%; 
however they 
should separate 
hardscape and 
softscape 

Provide 
hardscape and 
softscape 
calculation    

Parking Lot Landscaping:  1 tree for every 
8 parking spaces.  Trees may be located 
adjacent to parking lot with planning 
commission approval.   

33 trees  33 trees Compliant 

 
While not required the applicant has proposed 11 trees along the eastern property line, which is 
adjacent to I-75.   While it appears that the applicant has provided the required site landscaping, 
hardscape and softscape calculations should be provided.     
  
Trash Enclosure: 
 
The trash enclosure for the Carrabbas and Bonefish are located adjacent to the building. The Bonefish 
trash enclosure details have been provided.  The Carrabbas enclosure details have not been provided.   
The trash enclosure for the retail building is located in the along the front row of parking.  Details of 
retail building trash enclosure have not been indicated.   
 
The quality of the site layout and elevations from the parking lot are marred by the trash enclosures.  
The applicant is encouraged to incorporate the trash enclosure as part of the building or provide one 
common site trash enclosure location along the east property line (adjacent to I-75).   
 
Items to be Addressed: 1). Provide hardscape and softscape calculations; and 2). Reconfigure trash 
enclosure locations.       
  
 
 



Galleria of Troy 
February 4, 2013 

9 

LIGHTING 
 
The proposed site lighting consists of twelve (12) pole mounted lights.  The applicant has not indicated 
any building light fixtures.  In addition, the applicant does not include details for the pedestrian realm 
light fixtures and photometrics. 
 
The applicant should resubmit the lighting and photometric with all site and building lighted included.   
 
Items to be Addressed: 1). Provide building lighting fixtures; 2) Provide pedestrian realm fixtures; and 3). 
Resubmit photometric calculations with all site and building lighting included. 
 
DESIGN STANDARDS 
 
The Big Beaver design standards provide the Planning Commission with direction when reviewing the 
proposed design features of this development.  
 
Façade Variation.  
 
The maximum linear length of an uninterrupted building façade facing public streets and/or parks shall 
be thirty (30) feet.  Through the use of material changes, projections, façade articulation and 
fenestration, the all buildings comply with this standard.    
 

a. Primary Entrance:  The primary building entrance shall be clearly identifiable and useable and 
located in the front façade parallel to the street.  All elevations, including all retail building 
tenant spaces, are assessable from Big Beaver.  

Pedestrian Access / Entrance. 

 
b. Pedestrian Connection. The pedestrian connection shall be fully paved and maintained surface 

not less than five (5) feet in width. Through the pedestrian amenities along Big Beaver and the 
pedestrian spine through the site, the applicant exceeds this requirement.   

 
c. Additional Entrances. In addition to the primary façade facing front façade and/or the right-of-

way, if a parking area is located in the rear or side yard, must also have a direct pedestrian 
access to the parking area that is of a level of materials quality and design emphasis at least 
equal to that of the primary entrance.  Complies 

 

 
Ground Story Activation. 

The first floor of any front façade facing a right-of-way shall be no less than fifty (50) percent windows 
and doors, and the minimum transparency for facades facing a side street, side yard, or parking area 
shall be no less than 30 percent of the façade.  Transparency alternatives are permitted up to 80% of the 
50% total along the front of buildings, and up to 100% of the sides of buildings.  The minimum 
transparency requirement shall apply to all sides of a building that abut an open space, including a side 
yard, or public right-of-way.  Transparency requirements shall not apply to sides which abut an alley.   
 
The applicant shall confirm that they meet the transparency requirement for all buildings.  It appears 
that the north, east, and west elevations of the Carrabbas does not meet this requirement.   
 



Galleria of Troy 
February 4, 2013 

10 

 
Transitional Features 
 

a. Transitional features are architectural elements, site features, or alterations to building massing 
that are used to provide a transition between higher intensity uses and low- or moderate-density 
residential areas.  These features assist in mitigating potential conflicts between those uses.  
Transitional features are intended to be used in combination with landscape buffers or large 
setbacks. 

 
Due to proximity of other commercial uses, the commercial development is not a more intense 
use which would require transitional features.   

 
Site Access and Parking 
 

a. Required Parking.  Off-street parking shall be provided in accordance with the standards set 
forth in Article 13, Site Design Standards.   The applicant is providing the permitted parking.    
  

b. Location. 
I. When parking is located in a side yard (behind the front building line) but  fronts on the 

required building line, no more than fifty (50) percent of the  total site’s linear feet along 
the required building line or one hundred (100) feet, whichever is less, shall be occupied 
by parking.   Not Applicable  
 

II. For a corner lot, shall be no more than fifty (50) percent of the site’s cumulative linear 
feet along the required building lines or one hundred (100) feet, whichever is less, shall 
be occupied by parking.  The building shall be located in the corner of the lot adjacent to 
the intersection. The parking along Troy Center Drive exceeds the allowable 100 feet in 
length.  The applicant shall reduce the total amount of parking located along Troy 
Center Drive.   

 
III. For a double frontage lot or a lot that has frontage on three (3) streets, the  cumulative 

total of all frontages occupied by parking shall be no more  than sixty-five (65) percent of 
the total site’s linear feet along a required  building line or one hundred and twenty-five 
(125) feet, whichever is less. Not Applicable  

 
IV. Where off-street parking is visible from a street, it should be screened in accordance with 

the standards set forth in Section 13.02.C.  The applicant has screened their parking lot 
in compliance with section 13.0.2.C.   

  
Items to be Addressed: 1). Confirm transparency requirement for all buildings; and 2). Comply with 
parking along Troy Center Drive.  
 
SUMMARY OF FINDINGS 
 
We support the conceptual development of this site, and find that the plan and development details are 
more consistent with the vision along Big Beaver and the requirements of Big Beaver form-based district.  
However, we recommend that the following items be address and/or resubmitted prior to Preliminary 
Site Plan Approval:   



Galleria of Troy 
February 4, 2013 

11 

 
Commercial  

1) Address site plan issues to ensure development is consistent with Master Plan.     
2) Address concept of moving hotel building closer to Big Beaver. 
3) Move retail building closer to Big Beaver Road. 
4) Reduce parking along Troy Center Drive. 
5) For remaining parking along Troy Center Drive, setback parking at least thirty feet back. 
6) Incorporate bicycle parking as part of the pedestrian realm on Big Beaver. 
7) Address architectural comments for each building. 
8) Provide narrative indicating the use of materials and design features that provide design 

consistency between the retail building, Bonefish and Carrabbas. 
9)  Provide color rendering along entire length of Big Beaver. 
10) Incorporate additional elements into the pedestrian realm as outline in the Big Beaver Design 

Guidelines.    
11) Provide hardscape and softscape calculations.  
12) Reconfigure trash enclosure locations.       
13) Provide building lighting fixtures. 
14) Provide pedestrian realm fixtures. 
15) Resubmit photometric calculations with all site and building lighting included. 
16) Confirm transparency requirement for all buildings. 
17) Comply with parking along Troy Center Drive. 

 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT DECEMBER 11, 2012 
   
 
 

PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW 
 
7. PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number SP 979) – Proposed Galleria 

of Troy, North side of Big Beaver between Wilshire and I-75, Section 21, Currently 
Zoned BB (Big Beaver) District 
 
Mr. Carlisle reported that the site plans were not submitted in time to provide a full 
site plan review.  The petitioner is here this evening to get preliminary comments 
from the Board.  Mr. Carlisle gave a brief background of the proposed 
development. 
 
James Butler of Professional Engineering Associates and Elizabeth Abernethy of 
Bloomin’ Brands, Tampa, Florida, were present. 
 
The following was discussed: 
• Phase 1 (3 restaurants), Phase 2 (hotel). 
• Building design/architecture, aesthetics, cohesiveness. 
• Urban feel. 
• Crucial location; gateway to Troy. 
• Plaza, common ties with lighting and hardface. 
• Eye catching features. 
• Patio elements. 
• Center pad; greater height and mass; an anchor; a draw. 
• Outdoor features; fountain, water, art, public display. 
• Parking lot; provide landscaping, other elements to break up asphalt. 
• Dumpster locations. 
• ‘Sound’ studies; buffer traffic noise. 
• Stormwater mitigation. 
• Hotel layout. 
• Future submission: 

o Examples/photographs of both restaurant brands at an existing site. 
o Complete photographs/display boards of whole project, not individual 

restaurants. 
 

 



























12033

B
O

N
E

FI
S

H
 G

R
IL

L

HCG

1/21/13

DWM

B
ig

 B
ea

ve
r R

oa
d

Tr
oy

, M
ic

hi
ga

n 
48

08
4

G
al

le
ria

 a
t T

ro
y

A1.1

FLOOR PLAN















  PC 2012.12.11 
  Agenda Item # 8 

      
 

 
DATE: January 31, 2013 
 
TO: Planning Commission 
 
FROM: R. Brent Savidant, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: PUBLIC HEARING – REZONING APPLICATION (File Number Z 742) – 

Proposed 1071 Villa Park (part of Parcel ID #88-20-02-301-010), East side of 
Rochester Road, South of South Boulevard, Section 2, From R-1D (One Family 
Residential) District to RT (One-Family Attached Residential) District 

 
The subject property was rezoned to CR-1 (One Family Cluster) district in 1972.  The zoning 
classification was supposed to be changed from CR-1 to RT during the comprehensive rewrite 
of the Zoning Ordinance in 2011.  The property was rezoned in error to the R-1D (One Family 
Residential) district in April 2011 when the comprehensively rewritten Zoning Ordinance was 
adopted.  This rezoning will correct the error. 
 
The use of the subject property is Rochester Villas, a multi-family residential development 
consisting of attached one-family dwelling units.  Under the current zoning classification, 
Rochester Villas is considered a legal nonconforming use, since attached dwelling units are 
not permitted in R-1D. 
 
This item was discussed informally at a Planning Commission Special/Study meeting.  There 
was a consensus among Planning Commission members at the meeting that rezoning the 
parcel to RT was appropriate. 
 
The subject property is within the Rochester Road classification of the Master Plan, which 
contemplates this type of residential development. 
 
City Management recommends approval of the rezoning for the following reasons:  
 

1. The rezoning is consistent with the City of Troy Master Plan.  
2. The rezoning is consistent with abutting zoning districts and land uses. 
3. The rezoning will eliminate the nonconforming status of the subject property. 
4. The rezoning will correct an administrative error.  

 
There will be a public hearing on this item at the February 12, 2013 Planning Commission 
Regular meeting.  
 
 
Attachments: 

1. Maps/Legal Description 
2. City of Troy Master Plan (excerpt) 

 
G:\REZONING REQUESTS\Z 742  Rochester Villas  Sec 02\PC Memo 02 12 2013.doc 



PROPOSED RESOLUTION 
 
 
REZONING APPLICATION (File Number Z 742) – Proposed 1071 Villa Park (part of 
Parcel ID #88-20-02-301-010), East side of Rochester Road, South of South Boulevard, 
Section 2, From R-1D (One Family Residential) District to RT (One-Family Attached 
Residential) District 
 
Resolution # PC-2013-02- 
Moved by:  
Seconded by:  
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City Council 
that the R-1D to RT rezoning request, located on the east side of Rochester Road, 
south of South Boulevard (1071 Villa Park), in Section 2, being approximately 34.169 
acres in size, be approved for the following reasons: 
 

1. The rezoning is consistent with the City of Troy Master Plan.  
2. The rezoning is consistent with abutting zoning districts and land uses. 
3. The rezoning will eliminate the nonconforming use status of the subject property. 
4. The rezoning will correct an administrative error.  

 
Yes:  
No:  
Absent:  
 
MOTION CARRIED / FAILED 
 
 
 
 
 
G:\REZONING REQUESTS\Z 742  Rochester Villas  Sec 02\Proposed PC Resolution 02 12 2013.doc 



1071 Villa Park

Legend

1: 6,509

City of Troy Planning Department

Printed:

54201,085 1,085Feet

Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded deeds, plats, tax maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It 
is not a legally recorded map survey. Users of this data are hereby notified that the source information represented should be consulted for verification.

Scale

1/31/2013



1071 Villa Park - Current Zoning

Legend

1: 6,509

City of Troy Planning Department

Printed:

54201,085 1,085Feet

Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded deeds, plats, tax maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It 
is not a legally recorded map survey. Users of this data are hereby notified that the source information represented should be consulted for verification.

Scale

1/31/2013

Form Based Zoning (Current)
(PUD) Planned Unit Development

(CF) Community Facilities District

(EP) Environmental Protection District

(BB) Big Beaver Road (Form Based)

(MRF) Maple Road (Form Based)

(NN) Neighborhood Nodes (A-U)

(CB) Community Business

(GB) General Business

(IB) Integrated Industrial Business District

(O) Office Building District

(OM) Office Mixed Use

(P) Vehicular Parking District

(R-1A) One Family Residential District

(R-1B) One Family Residential District

(R-1C) One Family Residential District

(R-1D) One Family Residential District

(R-1E) One Family Residential District

(RT) One Family Attached Residential District

(MR) Multi-Family Residential

(MHP) Manufactured Housing

(UR) Urban Residential

(RC) Research Center District

(PV) Planned Vehicle Sales



1071 Villa Park - Previous Zoning

Legend

1: 6,509

City of Troy Planning Department

Printed:

54201,085 1,085Feet

Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded deeds, plats, tax maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It 
is not a legally recorded map survey. Users of this data are hereby notified that the source information represented should be consulted for verification.

Scale

1/31/2013

Zoning (Old)
(PUD) Planned Unit Development

(B-1) Local Business District

(B-2) Community Business District

(B-3) General Business District

(R-C) Research Center District

(C-F) Community Facilities District

(C-J) Consent Judgment

(E-P) Environmental Protection District

(R-EC) Residential Elder Care

(P-1) Vehicular Parking District

(H-S) Highway Service District

(M-1) Light Industrial District

(O-1) Office Building District

(O-M) Office Mid-Rise District

(OSC) Office Service Commercial District

(CR-1) One Family Residential Cluster District

(R-1A) One Family Residential District

(R-1B) One Family Residential District

(R-1C) One Family Residential District

(R-1D) One Family Residential District

(R-1E) One Family Residential District

(R-1T) One Family Attached Residential District

(R-2) Two Family Residential District

(R-M) Multiple Family Residential Medium Density

(RM-1) Multiple Family Residential District (Low Rise)

(RM-2) Multiple Family Residential District (Mid Rise)

(RM-3) Multiple Family Residential District (High Rise)



W 1/4 Cor.
Sec. 2

T2N-R11E

Center Post
Sec. 2

T2N-R11E

R
o
c
h
e
s
t
e
r
 
R

d
.

6
3

7
.0

7
1312.41

1350.00

5
9
1
.9

7

1323.32

8
7

5
.4

2

460.00863.13

162.33

43.00

160.00

43.00

Area=34.169 Acres

Area=29.663 Acres

(PUD)

(R-1D)

(R-1D)

(R-1D)

(EP)

Sketch was prepared from best available records.
No field work was completed.

NOTE:

5
3
7
.8

5

N
0
0
^

3
3
’3

4
"
E

N00^33’34"E

N00^33’34"E

5
1
3
.2

3

280.00

3
0
0
.0

0

460.00

2
6
0
.0

0

300.00

4
2
0
.0

0

S
0
0
^

1
7
’5

7
"

W

N88̂ 55’09"W

S
0
1̂

0
1
’5

3
"

W

N89̂ 09’41"W

S
0
1̂

0
1
’5

3
"

W

S89̂ 09’41"E

S
0
1̂

0
1
’5

3
"

W

Proposed Rezoning Parcel

R-1D to RT

N

CITY  OF  TROY

Document Prepared By

George J. Ballard III, P.S.

Land Surveyor

SCALE DRAWN BY

STEVEN J. VANDETTE, P.E.

CITY ENGINEER

SHEET NO. JOB NO.

OAKLAND COUNTY, MICHIGAN

DATE REV.

CONTRACT NO.

NAME GJBIII

DATE XX-XX-XX

VER. 1"=X’

N/A 1OF1 N/A

FILE: Rezoning_Sketch_Planning Dept_01092013.DGN

Rochester Villas Proposed
Rezoning Sketch

Parcel #88-20-02-301-010

HOR. 1"=300’ NAME

DATE 01-09-13

CHECKED BY

Graphic Scale: 1"=300’

0 300’ 600’150’



Thursday, January 10, 2013 
 
 
 

Section 2, Part of the NW 1/4 & SW 1/4 
Parcel: Part of #88-20-02-301-010 

Owner: Rochester Villas 
 
 
Description of Proposed Rezoning: (Taken from best available records) 
 
Part of the Northwest ¼ and the Southwest ¼ of Section 2, Town 2 North, Range 
11 East, City of Troy, Oakland County, Michigan.  Beginning at the West ¼ 
Corner of said section; thence North 00 degrees 14 minutes 38 seconds East, 
along the west section line, 637.07 feet; thence South 88 degrees 56 minutes 09 
seconds East 1312.41 feet; thence South 00 degrees 17 minutes 57 seconds 
West 513.23 feet; thence North 88 degrees 55 minutes 09 seconds West 280.00 
feet; thence South 01 degrees 01 minutes 53 seconds West 300.00 feet; thence 
North 89 degrees 09 minutes 41 seconds West 460.00 feet; thence South 01 
degrees 01 minutes 53 seconds West 260.00 feet; thence South 89 degrees 09 
minutes 41 seconds East 300.00 feet; thence South 01 degrees 01 minutes 53 
seconds West 420.00 feet to the north line of “Cherryhurst Subdivision”, as 
recorded in Liber 209, Pages 31-34 of Oakland County Records; thence North 89 
degrees 09 minutes 41 seconds West, along said north line, 863.13 feet to the 
west line of said section 2; thence North 00 degrees 33 minutes 34 seconds 
East, along said west line, 537.85 feet; thence South 89 degrees 26 minutes 26 
seconds East 43.00 feet; thence North 00 degrees 33 minutes 34 seconds East 
160.00 feet; thence North 00 degrees 33 minutes 34 seconds East 160.00 feet; 
thence North 89 degrees 26 minutes 26 seconds West 43.00 feet to the west line 
of said section 2; thence North 00 degrees 33 minutes 34 seconds East, along 
said west line, 162.33 feet to the point of beginning, containing 34.169 acres, 
more or less.  The West 33.00 feet of which is currently being used for road 
purposes. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G:\REZONING REQUESTS\Z 742  Rochester Villas  Sec 02\88-20-02-301-010.doc 



103

CITY OF TROY MASTER PLAN

CHAPTER 9: LAND PATTERNS

Rochester Road: 

Green Corridor

Regional model for a green corridor• 
A strong focus on access management• 
Heightened emphasis on strong stormwater • 
management techniques
Retail catering to regional traffi  c• 
Innovative site design techniques applied • 
through PUD use to allow for redevelopment 
for shallow lots

Rochester Road carries high volumes of traffi  c 
causing backups at intersections.  The abutting 
development pattern from Big Beaver Road 
north to Long Lake Road is a continuous row of 
highway-oriented commercial uses.  North of 
Long Lake Road, the land use pattern evolves, 
becoming a mix of commercial and offi  ce near 
the intersections and older single-family homes 
and multiple-family complexes in between.     

If Rochester Road is to have a defi ned 

role and pleasing character in the City, it 

must undergo a signifi cant transformation 

over time.  Ultimately, the Rochester Road 
Corridor will become a regional showcase 
for eff ective stormwater management and 
enhancement of the natural environment, while 
encouraging a combination of high-quality 
land uses.   Eff ective landscaping focused on 

native plantings, and improved land use and 
access management along Rochester will create 
a green corridor that provides a high level 
of service for motorists, and which provides 
an eff ective natural buff er between high 
traffi  c volumes and people visiting adjacent 
properties.  The creation of this green corridor 
would occur primarily in the right-of-way along 
road frontages and in the median of a future 
boulevard.  

While the emphasis on innovative 

stormwater management is specifi cally called 

on for the Rochester Road Corridor, new 

low-impact techniques are to be encouraged 

elsewhere throughout the City of Troy.  As 
noted in Chapter 7, innovative stormwater 
management is a priority for the community.  
Rochester Road will play an important role in 
this City-wide initiative by proving a regional 
showcase for such techniques.

New construction along the corridor may 
include detention and retention basins 
that work together from site-to-site with 
other features to create a continuous, linear 
landscape feature.  By connecting properties, 
the basins create visual relief from traffi  c.  
Low impact development methods will 

be used throughout the corridor to fi lter 

stormwater runoff .   Rochester Road will also be 
characterized by eff ective new signage, high-
quality lighting, and eff ective, complementary 
site and architectural design. 

Uses along Rochester Road will include a 
variety of mixed uses, established in a “pulsing” 
pattern where the most intense mixed-use or 
exclusively non-residential development will 
occur near the Neighborhood Nodes situated 
along its main intersections.  Lower-impact 
uses, such as small scale retail or condominiums 
should be encouraged along the corridor 
frontage between these nodes.

ROCHESTER ROAD



104 CHAPTER 9: LAND PATTERNS

DESIGN CONCEPT

Commercial strip development should be • 
limited and gradually replaced with mixed 
use.

Commercial development should be • 
encouraged to expand in the form of dense 
multi-story mixed-use concentrations 
at major intersections.  Concentrations 
are limited to within 1,000 feet of the 
intersection.  

The areas between nodes should develop as • 
lower-rise offi  ce and multiple-family.    The 
height diff erences encourage a visual “pulse.”

SITE DESIGN ATTRIBUTES

Parking areas should be within rear yards • 
or interior parts of the site.  A single row of 
parking may be appropriate in front and 
exterior side yards in limited applications.

Parking will connect to adjacent sites, • 
eventually linking several developments 
with a rear access lane.  The number of 
drives connecting to Rochester Road should 
be minimized.

Defi ned internal walks will connect the • 
businesses and buildings together.

Internal walks will be connected to the • 
public sidewalk system.

Buildings will be separated from street traffi  c • 
by a greenbelt or sculptural storm water 
detention basin. 

Height and size of signage will be reduced • 
to contain visual clutter.

BUILDING DESIGN ATTRIBUTES

The height at nodes will be multi-story not • 
exceeding four stories.       

The height between nodes should not • 
exceed two stories.

Ground level stories should be, at a • 
minimum, twelve feet in height; with large 
expanses of transparent glass at intersection 
nodes.  

Fenestration for the ground level of • 
buildings in nodes will be accentuated 
through the use of awnings, overhangs or 
trim detailing.  

Design for a Rain Garden in Troy; City of Troy

Lovell Pond in Troy; an example of an innovative, urban 
stormwater basin; Photo by Jennifer Lawson



  PC 2013.02.12 
  Agenda Item # 9 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
DATE: February 8, 2013 
 
TO: Planning Commission 
 
FROM: R. Brent Savidant, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (File Number ZOTA 245) – 

Sober Living Facility 
 
An organization, Great Lakes Recovery Community, is interested in using a property in 
Troy as a sober living facility.  The use is presently not permitted in the City of Troy.   
The Planning Commission identified the need for this type of facility and initiated the 
process to amend the Zoning Ordinance to permit this use. 
 
It is important to remember that a text amendment is applicable to all similarly-zoned 
properties in Troy. 
 
To assist the Planning Commission in making an informed decision, members were 
invited to tour a similar operating facility in Shelby Township on January 17.  The 
Planning Commission discussed this issue conceptually at the January 22, 2013 
Special/Study meeting. 
 
The attached memo prepared by Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. includes a definition 
for this type of facility (“recovery center”) plus potential Zoning Ordinance provisions.  A 
copy of this memo was provided to representatives of Great Lakes Recovery 
Community for their input, and they provided some constructive comments.  These 
comments are attached for your information. 
 
Please be prepared to discuss this matter at the February 12, 2013 Planning 
Commission Regular meeting. 
 
 
Attachments: 

1. Report prepared by CWA 
2. Email from David Lord, dated February 7, 2013 

 
G:\ZOTAs\ZOTA 245 Recovery Centers\PC Memo 02 12 2013.doc 
 
 



From: dlord64@aol.com
To: Brent Savidant
Cc: bcarlisle@cwaplan.com; Susan M Lancaster; psmith@pioneercounseling.com
Subject: Re: Recovery Center Zoning Memo
Date: Thursday, February 07, 2013 11:22:59 PM

Brent,  Here are some of our thoughts for your consideration...

1.  In order for the City of Troy to assure greater control of the use provision within the Zoning
Ordinance, we feel that would serve particularly helpful refine the definition of a Recovery Center as
follows:  

Recovery Center:  A temporary residential living arrangement for seven (7) or more persons leaving an
institutional OR MEDICAL setting recovering from drug or alcohol addiction OR REQUIRING A HIGHER
LEVEL OF CARE THAN OUTPATIENT SERVICES BUT LESS THAN AN INSTITUTIONAL OR MEDICAL
SETTING and in need of a supportive living arrangement in order to ACHIEVE AND MAINTAIN
ENDURING STABILITY AND INDEPENDENT FUNCTIONING. These are persons who are receiving
therapy and counseling from LICENSED OR CERTIFIED PROFESSIONAL STAFF AND TRAINED NON
PROFESSIONAL OR PARAPROFESSIONAL STAFF to help them recuperate from the effects of drug or
alcohol addiction OR DUAL DIAGNOSIS. Recovery Center may provide limited supportive services to
residents only, including: mental health services; clinical rehabilitation services; social services; financial
management services; legal services; and other similar supportive services.  Residency is limited to a
specific number of months, TYPICALLY 24 MONTHS OR LESS.  This definition does not constitute
halfway houses for those released from prison or a homeless situation.

2.  With regard to the proposed Specific Use Provisions, we would suggest the following:

A.)  There are many of the residents (30% or more) who don't have a drivers license so we feel that the
parking ratio/bed should be reduced accordingly.  As such, we recommend that the provision be
described as follows: 
"Parking: 1 space for each 1.5 beds and (1) off-street parking space per employee and/or  caregiver at
largest shift shall be provided."

B.)  I believe that the minimum lot area requirement for a Convalescent Care Facility is 2,000 SF per
adult (excluding employees and/or caregivers) under the existing Zoning Ordinance, which we suggest
be the same lot area requirement for a "Recovery Center Adult serving between seven (7) or more
persons."  We feel that 2,000 SF is reasonable and 2,500 SF is too restrictive.

Last, in reviewing the Use Table, it appears that we'll need to rezone the property...to "OM" or one of
the Residential zoning districts.  We'd like to gain a better understanding and/or your thoughts of what
might be our best approach to rezone and obtain the necessary approvals use the propose Rochester
Court property(s) for our intended use.  

We, likewise, want a clear & definitive use provision established in your Zoning Ordinance to set
professional standards and requirements for a Recovery Center in the City of Troy...so we're on the
same page with you!  To that end, we hope that our suggestions above will be favorably.  Please let us
know your thoughts.  Hopefully, we'll have an opportunity to hear back from you before the meeting
next Tuesday.     

Thank you,  
David Lord

_______________________________________
-----Original Message-----
From: Brent Savidant <SavidantB@troymi.gov>
To: dlord64 <dlord64@aol.com>
Cc: Ben Carlisle <bcarlisle@cwaplan.com>; Susan M Lancaster <LancasteSM@troymi.gov>
Sent: Wed, Feb 6, 2013 11:55 am
Subject: Recovery Center Zoning Memo

mailto:dlord64@aol.com
mailto:SavidantB@troymi.gov
mailto:bcarlisle@cwaplan.com
mailto:LancasteSM@troymi.gov
mailto:psmith@pioneercounseling.com


David:
 
This memo will be presented and discussed with the Planning Commission.  Please review, as we are
interested in your thoughts.  Please share with Paul. 
 
Brent
 



 

  

605 S. Main Street, Ste. 1 
Ann Arbor, MI  48104 
 
(734) 662-2200 
(734) 662-1935 Fax 

 
 
MEMORANDUM 
 
TO: R. Brent Savidant, AICP, Planning Director 
 
FROM: Ben Carlisle, AICP 
 
DATE: February 6, 2013 
 
RE: Sober Living Zoning Ordinance Amendments  
 
 
An organization, Great Lakes Recovery Community, is interested in using a property in Troy as a 
structured and professionally administered residential treatment facility to serve infirmed persons 
suffering from a primary substance use disorder diagnosis or dual diagnoses of substance use 
disorder/addiction and psychiatric illness.  The use is not specifically listed in the Schedule of Regulations 
of the City of Troy Zoning Ordinance.  
 
Section 4.05 of the Zoning Ordinance gives the Zoning Administrator the authority to determine which 
district a use is permitted in. The Zoning Administrator may refer a proposed use to the Planning 
Commission for determination of the appropriate district(s) in which said use may be permitted.  
Furthermore, the Adult Foster Care Facility Licensing Act, 218 of 1979, clearly states that an 
establishment commonly described as an alcohol or a substance abuse rehabilitation center is not 
classified as an adult foster care facility.  Thus this type of facility is not defined nor regulated under that 
act.  Though the applicant notes they are working with the State, currently this is essentially a non-state 
regulated group home facility. However, since persons recovering from alcohol and drug addiction are 
considered to be handicapped, they have certain protections under the Americans with Disabilities Act 
and the Federal Fair Housing Act.  Thus, any regulation that treats sober living homes less favorably than 
similar uses may be considered exclusionary and difficult to justify.    
 
On January 22, 2013 the Planning Commission met to discuss the interpretation and appropriate 
districts of such use.   After lengthy discussion, the Planning Commission directed staff to define the use; 
add the use to the schedule of uses (Section 4.21) as not-permitted, permitted, or special use based on 
appropriateness in each district; and add any necessary specific use regulations.  This memo is a 
recommendation of draft language based on the best practices and the direction of the Planning 
Commission:  
 

BEST PRACTICES: 
 
Zoning studies and associated regulations for sober living or recovery centers were limited.  Through 
research we identified three communities that defined similar uses and adopted associated regulations: 



Carlisle Wortman Associates, Inc. 
2  P a g e  

Saint Paul, Minnesota 
 
The City Council directed a Sober House Zoning Study in May 2005, after the Council was informed that 
the number of sober houses locating in the city was on the rise. The study found that similar to Troy, the 
Ordinance did not list the use nor provide a similar use.  As a result of the study, the City Council passed 
an ordinance addressing the following:  

• Added definition: 
 

A dwelling unit occupied by more than four persons, all of whom are in recovery from 
chemical dependency and considered handicapped under the Federal Fair Housing Act 
Amendments of 1988. It provides a non-institutional residential environment in which the 
residents willingly subject themselves to written rules and conditions, including prohibition of 
alcohol and drug use (except for prescription medications obtained and used under medical 
supervision), intended to encourage and sustain their recovery. The residents of a sober house 
are similar to a family unit, and share kitchen and bathroom facilities and other common 
areas of the unit. Sober houses are financially self-supporting. This definition does not include 
facilities that receive operating revenue from governmental sources. Sober houses do not 
provide on-site supportive services to residents, including the following: mental health 
services; clinical rehabilitation services; social services; medical, dental, nutritional and other 
health care services; financial management services; legal services; vocational services; and 
other similar supportive services. 

 
• Added application procedure 
• Limited sober houses in residential districts to ten or less residents  
• Requires a Special Use for any facility over 17 residents 
• Incorporated parking standards of 1.5 parking space per resident 
• Created minimum lot area as the minimum lot area of the district plus 800 sq/ft per resident  
• Set concentration distance:  No sober living facility may be located within 300 of another   

 
Los Angeles, CA 
 
In 2011, Los Angeles adopted an ordinance that defined sober houses and similar facilities as 
“Alcoholism or Drug Abuse Recovery or Treatment Facility.” Defined as any premises, place or building 
licensed by the State of California that provides 24-hour residential nonmedical services to adults who 
are recovering from problems related to alcohol, drug or alcohol and drug misuse or abuse, and who 
need alcohol and drug recovery treatment or detoxification services.  In addition to the definition, the 
ordinance adopted the following standards:  

• If located in residential neighborhood, the facility is consistent with the residential character  
• Security lighting must be shielded   
• Occupancy limit of two residents for every bedroom  

 
Champaign County, IL 
 
In 2010, the County adopted an ordinance allowing recovery centers.  These facilities were limited to 
agricultural zoning districts as a special use and they must be operated by and located on the same 
property as a church or temple.  The following additional standards were adopted:  

• Must be served by public transportation 



Carlisle Wortman Associates, Inc. 
3  P a g e  

• The maximum number of residents allowed at one time shall be the smaller of the following 
numbers: 

o 10% of the maximum occupancy of the main worship area of the associated church or 
temple 

o 30 persons 
• The minimum required lot area shall be: 

o 20,000 square feet if served by a connected to sanitary sewer system 
o 30,000 square feet plus 7,000 square feet per resident if not served by a connected 

sanitary sewer system 
• Facility shall include 24 hour supervision 

 
It appears that these regulations were adopted for a specific property and/or applicant. 
 
Shelby Township:  
 
Great Lakes Recovery Center operates a six-woman facility in Shelby Township, which the Planning 
Commission visited.  I contacted Glenn Wynn, Planning Director of Shelby Township.   Mr. Wynn was not 
aware of the facility and noted that there are no specific use and regulations of this facility in the 
ordinance.  Since they are under seven (7) persons, they are considered a State Regulated Adult 
Residential facility.  Mr. Wynn also noted that they have not received any complaints or any 
correspondence from the neighborhood regarding the use.   
 

TROY ZONING AMENDMENT: 
 
Based on the direction of the Planning Commission and review of best practices, we recommend naming 
these facilities “recovery center” and adding following zoning amendments:  
 
Definition:  
 

Recovery Center:  A temporary residential living arrangement for seven (7) or more persons 
leaving an institutional setting recovering from drug or alcohol addiction and in need of a 
supportive living arrangement in order to readjust to living outside the institution. These are 
persons who are receiving therapy and counseling from support staff who are present when 
residents are present, to help them recuperate from the effects of drug or alcohol addiction.  
Recovery center may provide limited supportive services to residents only, including: mental 
health services; clinical rehabilitation services; social services; financial management services; 
legal services; and other similar supportive services.  Residency is limited to a specific number of 
weeks or months.  This definition does not constitute halfway houses for those released from 
prison or a homeless situation. 

 
The intent of the definition is to distinguish between recovery center and more service-intensive, 
government-licensed housing facilities occupied by residents with a higher level of dependence, and to 
reduce the existing lack of clarity about what constitutes a “legitimate” recovery center. This definition 
would not include dwelling units occupied by six (6) or less residents, which are covered by the standard 
definition of family, and by-right in single-family residential.   
 
 



Carlisle Wortman Associates, Inc. 
4  P a g e  

Use Table: 
 

 
Specific Use Provisions: 
 
Recovery Center:  
 

A. Recovery Center serving six (6) persons or less. A Recovery Center serving six (6) persons or less 
shall be considered a single-family use of property.   

B. Recovery Center Adult serving between seven (7) or more persons. 
1. A site plan, prepared in accordance with Article 8 shall be required to be submitted. 
2. Frontage on either a major or minor arterial street shall be required. 
3. Parking: 1 space per bed and (1) off-street parking space per employee and/or caregiver 

at largest shift shall be provided. 
4. Appropriate licenses with the State of Michigan shall be maintained. 
5. The subject parcel shall meet the minimum lot area requirements for the zoning district 

in which it is located provided there is a minimum site area of twenty-five hundred 
(2,500) square feet per adult, excluding employees and/or caregivers.  

6. Facility may include ancillary facilities are allowed such as multi-purpose recreational 
rooms and meeting rooms.  

 

 R1A-
R1E 

RT MR UR MHP CF EP CB GB IB O OM RC PV P 

Recovery 
Center 

S S S S NP NP NP NP NP S NP S NP NP NP 

For Comparison Purposes only  
Senior 
assisted/inde-
pendent 
living 

P P P P NP P NP P P P NP P NP NP NP 

Multiple-
family dwell-
ings (2-8 
stories) 

NP NP P P NP NP NP NP NP P NP NP NP NP NP 

Convalescent 
centers 

NP NP S S NP P NP P P P P P NP NP NP 

Adult foster 
care, family 
home 

P P P P P P NP NP NP NP NP NP NP NP NP 

Adult foster 
care, Small 
group home 

S S S S S S NP NP NP NP NP NP NP NP NP 

Adult foster 
care, large 
group home 

S S S S S S NP NP NP NP NP NP NP NP NP 

Adult foster 
care, con-
gregate 
facility 

S S S S S S NP NP NP NP NP NP NP NP NP 



Carlisle Wortman Associates, Inc. 
5  P a g e  

 

 
  
 


	/ PLANNING COMMISSION
	MEETING AGENDA
	REGULAR MEETING
	February 12, 2013 7:00 P.M. Council Chambers

	2013 01 08 PC Minutes_Draft.pdf
	PUBLIC HEARING OPENED

	Site Plan  2013 01 10.pdf
	(P-1) COVER-12211-(P-1)
	(P-2) TOPO-12211-(P-2)
	(P-3) SITE-12211-(P-3)
	(P-4) GRADE-12211-(P-4)
	(P-5) UTIL-12211-(P-5)
	(P-6) DETAIL-12211-(P-6)
	(L-1) LANDSCAPE-12211-(L-1)
	(L-2) TREE PRES-INVEN-12211-(L-2)
	2011-164Architectural-SitePlanSubmittal-1-10-13.pdf
	2011-164_A100-ConstructionPlan-Layout1
	A105-Details
	A200
	A201





